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Chairman’s Statement

EERE

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited (the
Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), | am pleased to
present the annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries for the
year ended 31 December 2023 (the “Year”).

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2023, the world successfully and effectively controlled the COVID-19
pandemic. Over the past few years, in the face of the challenges posed
by the pandemic, the Group has consistently prioritized the safety and
health of the people. We actively cooperated with the government’s
epidemic prevention efforts and protected the safety of our employees
and customers through robust internal management and crisis response
systems. With China’s continued implementation of proactive epidemic
prevention policies, the domestic situation further improved. Mainland
China lifted all restrictions related to the pandemic in the first half of 2023,
including travel limitations. As border controls eased, signs of recovery
started to emerge in the commercial and tourism industries, and both
business travelers and tourists began to embark on their journeys.

Throughout the year, we have adhered to a “steady progress”
development approach, closely monitoring changes in the international
environment and swiftly adjusting our business strategies to ensure the
stable operation of the Company amidst external uncertainties. The
Group demonstrated resilience in the performance of its accommodation
operation segment and achieved a new balance between online and
offline operations through digital empowerment, ensuring both epidemic
prevention and normal operations. Additionally, we continued to
expand in the areas of accommodation consulting and property facility
management services, striving to enhance our brand, quality, and
efficiency, thereby laying a solid foundation for business growth.

OUTLOOK FOR THE FUTURE

Looking ahead to 2024, we are confident about the future. As the
world moves beyond the pandemic, we believe that the travel and
accommodation industry will experience a gradual recovery. The end
of the COVID-19 pandemic will bring more confidence and a sense of
security, leading to an increase in travel activities and a gradual rebound
in consumer demand for accommodation services. This trend also fuels
people’s enthusiasm for travel and signifies that in the days to come, they
will be more willing to invest in vacation trips, bringing more opportunities
for our accommodation business.
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While we acknowledge that challenges still exist, we also see
opportunities. The optimization of the Chinese economy and the macro
policies promoted by the government will provide strong support for
our business development. The Group will continue to actively seek
various investment and business development opportunities, enhance
our competitiveness in the market, and promote sustained high-quality
development. At this new starting point, we will remain committed to the
principles of “prudent operation and continuous innovation”, constantly
improving our products and service levels to meet the growing needs
of our customers. Moreover, we will embrace cooperation opportunities
of different industries with an open mindset, expand and diversify
our income sources, and achieve the long-term goal of sustainable
development for the Company.

We express our gratitude to shareholders and partners for their
continuous support, enabling us to work together to create a brighter
future and share the fruits of future development.

Yuan Fuer
Chairman
On Behalf of the Board

25 March 2024
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRR DN

BUSINESS AND OPERATION REVIEW FOR 2023

The Group is principally engaged in accommodation operations,
provision of accommodation consultations and property facilities
management services and other related business. The Group has five
leased-and-operated accommodation projects under operation during
the Year. Revenue from accommodation operations during the Year was
mainly derived from rental of accommodation and conference facilities
and provision of property facilities management and accommodation
consultations services.

With the gradual reduction of the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic in
the first half of 2023 and the reopening of China’s borders with other
international regions, the hotel business is expected to gradually improve.
However, the hotel business is still affected by the unstable Chinese and
global economy and geopolitical situation. Faced with such complex and
severe situation, the Group maintains a cautious and proactive attitude
around its main business, by the way enhancing its core competitiveness,
grasping macro-environmental trends and market developments, seizing
opportunities in the recovery of the tourism industry and the increasing
consumer willingness to spend, adjusting business strategies, expanding
and developing personalized accommodation products and management
services, accelerating store openings, upgrading brands and products,
optimizing member benefits, enhancing experience and efficiency,
forming a well-structured, distinctive and clear hotel brand matrix, and
achieving performance growth. On this basis, the Group also takes
advantage of the situation, overcomes difficulties, promotes integration,
strengthens management, controls costs, reduces expenses, and
promotes the sustainable and high-quality development of the enterprise.

Accommodation operations business

With respect to the accommodation operation, for the year ended 31
December 2023, the revenue was HK$58,247,000, representing an
increase of approximately 6.57% as compared with the last financial
year. The increase in revenue was mainly attributable to the growth in
the accommodation business of the Group, which was driven by the
accelerated recovery of various industries and the further stabilization
of the overall improving fundamentals in light of the effective domestic
pandemic prevention and control measures and other favorable policies,
in particular when the tourism market rebounded gradually, evidenced
by the resumption of cross-province traveling frequency to the pre-
pandemic level, as well as a significant increase in resident travel radius,
length of stay, and leisure travel radius.
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Despite the Group recorded an increase in revenue as compared to the
last financial year, the Group continued to dedicate itself to improving
the performance of its existing accommodation projects and stimulating
its property facilities management and accommodation consultations
services by implementing effective sales and marketing plans, including
entering into cooperation agreements with new tourism intermediaries
and actively liaising with various corporate customers. The Group
also continued to adopt a series of operation improvement schemes
during the Year such as improving accommodation ancillary facilities
and implementing staff performance programs. By seeking customers’
feedback from time to time, reviewing comments available from online
travel agencies and their platforms, as well as actively carrying out
improvement plans to increase service quality, customers’ satisfaction
and employees’ morale, in order to boost up revenue and improve
performance in all aspects.

In addition to the frontline operation of various accommodation projects
and services, we also took important actions to control back office and
other expenses, including reviewing human resource efficiency and
making corresponding improvements, maintaining cost-saving measures
to lower corporate expenses and reviewing performance from time to
time by comparing with financial budgets, so as to maximize the Group’s
benefits.

The following is an update on the Group’s existing business:
Accommodation projects under operations
Chengdu Branch

Chengdu Branch is situated near Tianfu Square. It has two floors and a
total gross floor area (“GFA”) of approximately 7,600 sq.m.. As located at
the heart of Chengdu, Tianfu Square is a representative landmark, which
is not only the economic, cultural, and commercial center of Chengdu,
but also a strategically important transportation hub. Adjacent to famous
tourist sites, including People’s Park, Wuhou Shrine, Kuanzhai Alley,
Chunxi Road Pedestrian Street, and the millennium ancient temple Daci
Temple, the Chengdu branch gains full access to the golden business
district of Tianfu Square, while overlooking Sichuan Provincial Library,
Chengdu Museum, Tianfu Square, and other new landmarks in the city.
Due to easily accessible transport services, accommodation guests can
reach tourist attractions by express shuttle buses or multiple bus routes
nearby the branch. It is a one-minute walk to Metro Lines 1 and 2 (Tianfu
Square Station), and an approximately five-minute walk to the airport bus
stop. In addition, drives from Chengdu Shuangliu International Airport,
Chengdu East Railway Station and Chengdu South Railway Station
take within 30 minutes. Furthermore, the branch is in close proximity to
various gourmet restaurants.
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Chengdu as a famous domestic tourist city, at a result of the resumption
of normal cross-border traffic between mainland China and Hong Kong,
local economic and livelihood activities were quickly restored. With the
increasing momentum of economic recovery in Chengdu and the steady
rebound in tourism consumption confidence, coupled with the Group’s
flexible and rapid approach in adjusting its operational strategies,
business of the Chengdu Branch recorded exceptional growth during the
Year. It is expected that the Chengdu Branch will generate sustainable
and stable income for the Group in the future.

Wuhan Branch

Located at the intersection of Lingyun Road and Lingkonggang Avenue
in Municipal East-West Lake Lingkonggang Economic Development
Zone, the Wuhan Branch has five floors and a total GFA of approximately
9,000 sg.m.. It is adjacent to East-West Lake Five-Ring Sports Center
and the new district government building. It is also close to the East-West
Lake Eco-tourism Zone, Matoutan Cultural Heritage Park, Xiehe East-
West Lake Hospital and Huangshihai Park. It is a within nine-minute drive
to Sandian Metro Station and Matoutan Metro Station. It is 200 meters
away from the bus station of Lingyun Road East, 21 kilometers away
from Wuhan Tianhe Airport and 15 kilometers away from Hankou Railway
Station, which makes it very convenient to travel around.

As a major transportation hub in China, mainland China has further
consolidated its achievements in epidemic prevention and control as
well as economic recovery. This has led to the release of various pent-
up demands in Wuhan city. Companies engaging in cross-province and
cross-city activities have stabilized and begun to recover. Wuhan Branch,
taking into account the current situation, has strengthened management
in operational upgrades, revenue marketing, and cost optimization since
its opening despite the fact that the performance of large commercial
complexes and other business activities of the surrounding area has yet
to improve. It has steadily operated and achieved expected results.

Huizhou Branch

Huizhou Branch is situated at Xunliaowan of Huizhou, which is easily
accessible as Huizhou is located near the Pearl River Delta neighbouring
Shenzhen and Hong Kong with direct flights to other cities in China.
Xunliaowan offers our guests opportunities to enjoy a beach vacation in
the region, become a beach bum, spend their days lazing on the sand
and take in the sun followed by a dip in the clear waters. Also, with both
historic scenic spots and the coast along the Pacific Ocean, Huizhou
attracts domestic and foreign tourists to spend their holiday in the region.
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Benefiting from the resumption of normal cross-border traffic between
mainland China and Hong Kong, the industry is noticeably on the
trajectory of recovery as the popularity of travel among tourists continues
to rise. Given the popularity of Huizhou Branch gained from previous
years and with the commitment to the development of the Greater
Bay Area of the Chinese Government, the Group looks forward to the
increasing number of guests visiting the region which will boost the
performance of Huizhou Branch in the long run.

Nanshan Branch

Nanshan Branch is situated near the Hong Kong-Shenzhen Western
Corridor and the Shekou Port. It has five floors and a total GFA of
approximately 7,000 sq.m., comprising 189 rooms. The Branch is
located just beside the subway exit of Nanshan Station of Shenzhen
Metro Line No. 11 and it takes approximately 30 minutes to travel from
Nanshan Branch to the airport. Also, Nanshan Branch is in the proximity
of the Coastal City Commercial Area, Shenzhen Book Mall (Nanshan),
Shenzhen Bay Sports Centre Stadium and theme parks such as the
Window of the World, Overseas Chinese Town Harbour and the Sea
World, which provides convenient location and stable demand for
temporary accommodation from both business and tourism guests.

As mentioned in the Company’s announcement dated 28 December
20283, an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company as tenant
and the landlord entered into a supplemental tenancy agreement in
respect of the renewal of the tenancy of the properties on which Nanshan
Branch operates till 30 June 2026.

Nanshan Branch sought transformation through innovation and continued
to introduce various types of accommodations to attract consumers,
such as e-sports rooms and other special arrangements, thus increasing
customer base and the satisfaction level of accommodation guests.
Given an orderly recovery of the domestic tourism market, a stronger
consumer sentiment, and an increasing demand for commercial activities
such as exhibitions and training, the operating result of Nanshan Branch
continued to improve, with an increase in revenue over the last financial
year. The Group will continue to review its marketing strategies and
re-examine the model of cooperation and sales plans with tourism
intermediaries and corporate customers in order to improve its revenue in
the long run.
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Baoan Branch

Baoan Branch has four floors and a total GFA of approximately 1,700
sg.m., comprising 46 rooms. Surrounded by prosperous commercial
streets and pedestrian streets, the Branch is located at the central area of
administration, culture, sport, commerce and entertainment in the Baoan
District, “a core district of the Bay Area”, and is within close proximity of
Haiya Mega Mall, a famous commercial center in Shenzhen, and Baoan
Sports Center, the largest gymnasium in Shenzhen where the 2011
Summer Universiade was held. It is a 20-minute drive from the Baoan
International Airport, and takes within 10 minutes walk from the Coach
Terminal, the Xixiang Pier, and Lingzhi Station of Shenzhen Metro Line 5
(near Lingzhi Park). It has convenient access to efficient road, sea and air
transportation.

Benefiting from the overlapping effects of the accommodation
improvements brought about by the comprehensive renovation in
recent years and the rebound in the tourism industry, revenue from the
accommodation business of the Baoan Branch also increased.

Project in the pipeline
Baoan exhibition project

The Baoan exhibition project is located in the Exhibition Bay Li An
Square (& & /& = & ¥5) in Baoan Airport New City, Shenzhen, and
adjacent to Baoan International Airport, Shenzhen World Convention
& Exhibition Center and the coastline of Guangdong-Hong Kong-
Macao Greater Bay Area, with a GFA of approximately 9,583 square
meters. Upon completion, the project, which can provide 144 guest
rooms, will be mainly used for the relevant operation of hotel rooms and
catering and supporting projects. The all-inclusive international exhibition
supporting facilities of Exhibition Bay Li An Square fully satisfy the needs
of businesses, hotels and parks. Equipped with approximately 190,000
square meters of a shopping center Garden World (fE&E K1), the project
also provides approximately 16,000 square meters of sunken coffee-
and-cocktail-bar-themed commercial facilities, building an upscale
entertainment and leisure platform, and creating a bustling lifestyle center
in an international metropolis.

it}

T RIE

v

BERERENERE  AREEREBEL,700F
K BIE4ACMER - EHEEERL 1B
RREITH - X8 - BEMRER RO -
FIRBEENBHREMPTE - AORIIFH
BENEHEDW - RINSKALAPRBRNES
MELRREMR ERETEEREKIS20DEE
12 - BBEERIRITEYL - FARISER SR E S
REVEEE O ESTEFI00E - 58 8-
ERXBETORE - LERF -

XamIFRERERGRNEBERFNE
DA i 308 72 35 [0 B P 7 SR D R AN BURE » B SG
MIEBEBAOTERN YR A FTIEM o

s
FEREER
BERRADCRRITEREEFARR

EBERES  BHNELEBESE - FRIBER
ERTPLEESRKNERSGRG  EELEEE
499,583 F Kk c HEEKNEFTERRNBLER
ERESFMEEEEMBRALE - fJiRift144
MEE eREEFESEFSREERRES
% BECAE - AREHERE U198 F
HAEEXR —BYHL o HEREN1.68
FRARTARAEBMREBEEFTERE  BES
NIRRT A - TEBR R EEAIEF
Iy e

Annual Report 2023
R FEER

11




mmmm m § Management Discussion and Analysis

il 12

EEENWRIN

Shenzhen Zhaohua Exhibition Industry Company Limited (“Shenzhen
Zhaohua”) is a limited company established in China by China Merchants
Shekou Industrial Zone Holdings Co., Ltd. and Shenzhen Overseas
Chinese Town Co., Ltd., each holding approximately 50% of the shares.
As the owner of the Baoan exhibition project, Shenzhen Zhaohua was
originally scheduled to deliver the property to the Group by the end of
2023. However, due to Shenzhen Zhaohua’s failure to complete the
construction and acceptance of the property and deliver it to the Group
as agreed before the delivery deadline, and in light of the changes in the
economy, business environment, and ecology of the area over time, the
Group has also periodically updated the commercial investment return
assessment of the project accordingly. After careful consideration, the
Group believes that the latest forecasted return of the project does not
meet its requirements, and shall propose to cease waiting for the property
that has not been delivered on time. Therefore, after negotiations, the
Group and Shenzhen Zhaohua have reached a consensus to terminate
the contract. The Group has claimed for a full refund of the previously
paid deposits and guarantees, formally withdrawing from the project and
reallocating resources for other promising projects, while continuing to
develop the accommodation business in an organized manner in line with
economic conditions.

Property facilities management and accommodation
consultations services

The Group continued to explore ways to broaden and stabilise its revenue
base and source of income as well as to improve the performance of
the Group such as the provision of property facilities management and
accommodation consultations services which are considered to be
less impacted by the pandemic. For facilities management services, the
Group provided property facilities outsourcing management services
such as professional cleaning, sterilisation, inventory supply management
and quality management to third party customers. For accommodation
consultations services, the Group provides consultations services for
setting up accommodations, guesthouses, inns, resorts, apartments,
elderly apartments, hostels, homestays, dormitories, staff quarters and
other accommodation projects, such as performing market research and
investment feasibility analysis, provision of accommodation construction
and design consultations services and accommodation planning, opening
and construction management services to customers.
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During the Year, the Group strengthened its business operations
involving property facilities management and accommodation
consultations services, which are expected to continuously contribute to
the performance of the Group. In the foreseeable future, we expect to
expand further the property facilities management services to residential
property management services, and popularise high-standard property
facilities management services to the general community, so as to
optimize the business portfolio, enlarge revenue base and create values
for shareholders.

OUTLOOK

Under the challenging business environment, the Group will continue to
actively strengthen the foundation of its principal businesses and build
brand synergy. The accommodation operations recorded a significant
improvement due to the increasing customer base and scale of operation
of Chengdu Branch and Wuhan Branch. At the same time, the Group will
also continue to focus on accommodation projects and accommodation
consultation and management services and provide diversified and
quality products and services in a targeted manner such as hostels,
elderly apartments and elderly resorts in order to expand its market share
and achieve overall growth in 2024.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the Year, the Group recorded revenue of HK$67,661,000, compared
with HK$63,002,000 for the last financial year, representing an increase
of approximately 7.40%. The Group recorded a total comprehensive loss
of HK$61,867,000 for the Year compared with HK$18,902,000 for the
last financial year, representing an increase of approximately 227.30%.

The following table shows the key information of all the Group’s leased-
and-operated accommodation rooms for the years ended 31 December
2023 and 2022 respectively.
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7T 8 @8 K F E 2 63,002,000 Tt 1
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2023 2022

—E2_=F TECF

Total available room nights AR HAEREBRY 235,045 237,250
Occupancy rate PNER:S 74.38% 66.54%
ARR (RMB)* FHEHR(ARET) 312.2 273.6
RevPAR (RMBY)* FHEREERAANRET) 232.2 182.0

Annual Report 2023
R FEER

13 I



mmmm m § Management Discussion and Analysis

-

EEENWRIN

ARR: the room revenue of all accommodation rooms divided by the total
occupied room nights

L RevPAR: the room revenue of all accommodation rooms divided by the total
available room nights

For the Year, total available room nights of the Group decreased by 2,205
nights or approximately 0.93% as compared with last financial year due
to internal renovation work of certain rooms of the Year. The occupancy
rate and RevPAR of the Group increased by 7.84% and RMB50.2 or
approximately 27.58% respectively as compared with last financial
year, mainly due to strong rebound and in demand of domestic tourism
industry.

Operating costs

The total operating costs decreased by HK$12,368,000, or approximately
16.32%, from HK$75,793,000 for last financial year to HK$63,425,000
for the Year. The decrease is mainly attributable to the following reasons:

Depreciation of right-of-use assets decreased by HK$971,000 or
approximately 4.56% due to the rent reduction regarding lease
modification of Baoan Branch, Wuhan Branch and Chengdu Branch.
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment decreased by
HK$515,000 or approximately 5.50%, primarily due to certain property,
plant and equipment fully depreciated in prior Year.

Employee benefit expenses decreased by HK$3,863,000 or
approximately 17.90% mainly attributable to the effective employee
management adopted during the year. Meanwhile, utilities decreased by
HK$218,000 or approximately 5.64%.

Other operating expenses decreased by HK$6,801,000 or approximately
34.54% mainly because one-off expenses incurred regarding the early
termination of operator contract of Chengdu Branch and Wuhan Branch
in prior year.
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The following table shows the total operating costs for the financial years
ended 31 December 2023 and 2022:

TREINBE-_BE-_=ER-_ZT-_—_F+_H
=+ —HUMREE 2 B KAS

2023 2022

—E-=F —EF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAT

Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 20,316 21,287
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment Y - BEKEETE 8,847 9,362
Employee benefit expenses EERAMFAX 17,722 21,585
Utilities NSRS 3,649 3,867
Other operating expenses EfEEmRY 12,891 19,692
63,425 75,793

Finance costs

The finance costs decreased by HK$1,596,000 to HK$5,791,000
as compared with last financial year. The decrement is mainly due to
repayment of lease liabilities during the Year, therefore interest expense is
relatively reduced.

Liquidity and financial resources

During the Year, the Group mainly financed its operations and expansion
with its own working capital generated internally and borrowings from the
Controlling Shareholder (with principal amount of HK$27,469,000 as at
31 December 2023, which are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand).

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had bank and cash balances of
HK$2,214,000 (31 December 2022: HK$2,434,000). Gearing ratio is
calculated as the amount of interest-bearing borrowings divided by
total equity. The gearing ratio as at 31 December 2023 was N/A (31
December 2022: 9,031%).
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Annual Report 2023

ZE=HEER

15 [



mmmm m § Management Discussion and Analysis

_ I

EEENWRIN

The Group was in net current liabilities and net liabilities position of
HK$72,189,000 and HK$82,741,000 as at 31 December 2023. The
Controlling Shareholder has agreed to provide continuing financial
support to the Company to enable it to meet its liabilities as and when
they fall due and to enable the Company to continue its operations for the
foreseeable future. Consequently, the financial statements are prepared
on a going concern basis.

Foreign exchange risk

For the Year, the Group’s majority of the assets and liabilities, and
income and expenses were denominated in Renminbi and Hong Kong
Dollar. The Group had no significant exposure to fluctuations in exchange
rates under foreign exchange contracts, interest, currency swaps or other
financial derivatives.

Capital structure

For the Year, there was no material change to the capital structure of the
Group and information disclosed in the report of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2023. The total number of the issued shares of
the Company was 448,363,708 as at 31 December 2023 (31 December
2022: 448,363,708 shares).

Dividends

The Directors do not recommend the payment of dividend in respect of
the Year (2022: Nil).

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total issued share capital was held by the public as at 25 March 2024,
being the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report
for the purpose of ascertaining information contained herein (the “Latest
Practicable Date”).
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EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

The Group had 94 employees (31 December 2022: 120 employees) as
at 31 December 2023. During the Year, the total staff costs (including
Directors’ emoluments) were HK$17,722,000 (2022: HK$21,585,000).
Remuneration is determined with reference to market terms and
performance, qualifications and experience of each individual employee.
Discretionary bonuses based on individual performance will be paid to
employees as recognition of and reward for their contributions. Other
benefits include contributions to retirement scheme.

CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2023, the Group did not have any charges on its
assets (31 December 2022: Nil).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group had no outstanding
capital commitments.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold, or
redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company during the Year.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had issued or granted
any convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights or exercised
any conversion or subscription rights under any convertible securities,
options, warrants or similar rights during the Year.
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COMPLIANCE CONFIRMATION

The Board of Directors confirms that throughout the Year, the Group has
conformed in all material respects with all the requirements under relevant
statutes, rules, standards, codes, licences in respect of its operation,
financial reporting, or disclosures in Hong Kong or other applicable
jurisdictions.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND
STAKEHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Group recognises and respects: (i) the importance of environmental
protection; (i) the lawful rights of stakeholders, broadly to be categorised
as employees, customers, suppliers, members of communities; and (iii)
corporate social responsibilities of the Group as a member of the society.
A specific report on these issues is covered in the “Environmental, Social
and Governance Report” of this Annual Report.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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The following set forth the biographical details of the Directors and the
members of the senior management of the Company as at the Latest
Practicable Date.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER AND COMPANY SECRETARY

Chung Tin Yan

Mr. Chung Tin Yan (“Mr. Chung”), aged 40, was appointed as
an Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer of the Company in
December 2019, following the appointment as the financial controller and
the company secretary of the Company in February 2017. He was further
appointed as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company with effect
from 3 November 2022. Mr. Chung graduated from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University with a degree of Bachelor of Arts in Accountancy
in 2005. He has over 16 years of experience in finance, investment,
mergers and acquisitions, compliance, internal control, auditing and
accounting. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Chung held various senior
positions mainly responsible for business analysis in the management
team of the Chief Operating Officer with Hutchison Telecommunications
Hong Kong Holdings Limited (stock code: 0215). He has also worked as
an audit manager at Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. Mr. Chung has extensive
experience in corporate finance and fund raising activities in both Hong
Kong and the United States. He is a member of Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and Hong Kong Securities and Investment
Institute. He has also been acting as a subcommittee member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants since November 2021.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Yuan Fuer

Mr. Yuan Fuer (“Mr. Yuan”), aged 61, was appointed as a non-
executive Director of the Company with effect from 15 August 2018
and the Chairman of the Group with effect from 6 September 2018. Mr.
Yuan graduated from Jiangxi Public Medical School in medical studies.
Mr. Yuan, a businessman with over 18 years of experience in property
development and investment business in the PRC, founded Shenzhen
Hazens Real Estate Group Company Limited (“Shenzhen Hazens”) in
1996. Apart from property development and investment in the PRC,
Shenzhen Hazens expanded into other businesses including financial
business, medical business, and hotel and tourism business. Mr. Yuan is
the ultimate beneficial controlling shareholder of Shenzhen Hazens. Mr.
Yuan is also a controlling Shareholder by virtue of being the sole director
and sole shareholder of Hehui International Development Limited, the
Controlling Shareholder. Mr. Yuan is a brother-in-law of Mr. Hu Xinglong,
a non-executive Director of the Company.

Hu Xinglong

Mr. Hu Xinglong (“Mr. Hu”), aged 59, was appointed as a non-
executive Director of the Company with effect from 15 August 2018. Mr.
Hu holds a Master Degree in Business Administration from China Europe
International Business School. Mr. Hu is a brother-in-law of Mr. Yuan.
Mr. Hu has been the vice president of Shenzhen Hazens since October
2016, and the chairman and the general manager of Shenzhen Hazens
Property Service Company Limited from October 2016 to April 2017.
Furthermore, he had also served as an audit manager, finance manager
and chief accountant of FIYTA Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (SZSE Stock Code: 000026) from June 1997
to October 2016. Mr. Hu was certified as Certified Public Accountant by
the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants in 1993 and Certified
Internal Auditor by the Institute of Internal Auditors in 1999.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Wu Jilin

Mr. Wu Jilin (“Mr. Wu”), aged 56, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company with effect from 15 August 2018.
Mr. Wu holds a Master Degree in Accounting from Jiangxi University of
Finance and Economics. Mr. Wu was an executive partner of Shenzhen
Lianchuang Lixin Certified Public Accountants since January 2005 and
is an adjunct professor of Accounting Faculty and a tutor of part-time
master students at Jiangxi University of Finance and Economics since
November 2015 and September 2016 respectively. He is a member of
the Society of Chinese Accountants and Auditors since 2013.

In addition, Mr. Wu has served as an independent director of Jilin
Liyuan Precision Manufacturing Co., Ltd. (a listed company on the
Shenzhen Stock exchange, stock code: 002501) since April 2020, and
an independent director of Huangshan Tourism Development Co.,Ltd.
(a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock code: 600054)
since December 2020.

Du Hongwei

Mr. Du Hongwei (“Mr. Du”), aged 56, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company with effect from 15
August 2018. Mr. Du holds a Master Degree in Economics from Fudan
University. Mr. Du was the vice president, chief financial officer and joint
company secretary of Sunshine 100 China Holdings Ltd (Stock Code:
2608) from December 2013 to July 2016, January 2014 to March 2016
and June 2014 to March 2016, respectively. Mr. Du was the general
manager of Tianjin Yufeng Equity Investment Management Company
Limited from September 2009 to May 2012. Mr. Du was a director of
Sichuan Dikang Sci & Tech Pharmaceutical Industry Co., Ltd. (now
known as Sichuan Languang Development Co., Ltd.), a company listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (Shanghai Stock Exchange Stock
Code: 600466) from November 2007 to October 2008. Mr. Du was
an independent non-executive director of Enviro Energy International
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1102) from June 2019 to October 2019
and has been re-appointed to the same position since June 2020 to
March 2023.
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Lam Cheung Shing Richard

Mr. Lam Cheung Shing Richard (“Mr. Lam”), aged 65, has been
appointed as an independent non-executive Director of the Company
since 31 December 2022. Mr. Lam served as the vice chairman and
chief executive officer of EverChina Int’l Holdings Company Limited, a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, from June
2009 to October 2023. He is currently a senior advisor to EverChina
Int’l Holdings Company Limited. He is a fellow member of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and obtained the Master’s
Degree in Business Administration in the Chinese University of Hong
Kong in 2006. Mr. Lam spent over ten years in PricewaterhouseCoopers,
an international accounting firm and was promoted to the position of
senior audit manager, and is equipped with extensive experience in
accountancy, taxation and corporate finance. During the period from
July 2019 to July 2020, Mr. Lam was also appointed as a senior advisor
to the chairman of the Board, and has a certain understanding of the
business of the Group.

Other than the directorship in the Company, Mr. Lam currently also
serves as an independent non-executive director at Far East Holdings
International Limited, Lajin Entertainment Network Group Limited and
China Water Industry Group Limited, whose shares are listed on the
GEM and the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, respectively. Besides,
Mr. Lam was appointed as an independent non-executive director or
executive director in various companies whose shares are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange during the period from 2001 and July
2014, including Eagle Legend Asia Limited, Kai Yuan Holdings Limited
and Softpower International Limited (now known as China Pipe Group
Limited).

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Various businesses of the Group are respectively under the direct
responsibility of the executive Director as named above.

Only the executive Director is regarded as a member of the Group’s
senior management.
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The Company is committed to ensuring a high standard of corporate
governance in the interests of the shareholders and devotes considerable
effort to maintain high level of business ethics and corporate governance
practices.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with the applicable Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Part 2 of Appendix C1 (formerly
known as Appendix 14) to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) throughout the Year, except
for certain deviations as specified with considered reasons for such
deviations as explained below. The Board will keep reviewing and
updating such practices from time to time to ensure compliance with
legal and commercial standards.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board is primarily responsible for formulating strategies, monitoring
performance and managing risks of the Company and its subsidiaries.
At the same time, it also has the duty to enhance the effectiveness of the
corporate governance practices of the Group. Under the Board, there
are 3 Board committees, namely the audit committee, the remuneration
committee and the nomination committee. All these committees perform
their distinct roles in accordance with their respective terms of reference
and assist the Board in supervising certain functions of the senior
management.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Group had adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix C3 (formerly known
as Appendix 10) to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as its own
code of conduct for securities transactions by the Directors and relevant
employees who, because of their office or employment, are likely to be in
possession of unpublished inside information in relation to the Company’s
securities. The Company had made specific enquiry to all the Directors
and such relevant employees and they had confirmed compliance with
the Model Code throughout the Year. No incident of non-compliance was
noted by the Company during the Year.
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CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Mr. Lam Cheung Shing Richard resigned as an executive director, and
also ceased to be the chief executive officer of EverChina Int’| Holdings
Company Limited (stock code: 202), a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange, with effect from 1 November 2023.

Mr. Lam Cheung Shing Richard has been appointed as an independent
non-executive director of Far East Holdings International Limited (stock
code: 36), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
with effect from 17 November 2023.

Save as disclosed above, there is no changes in the Directors’
information required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the
Listing Rules.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the Board comprises six Directors as
follows:

Executive Director
Mr. Chung Tin Yan (Chief Executive Officer)
Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yuan Fuer (Chairman)
Mr. Hu Xinglong

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wu Jilin
Mr. Du Hongwei
Mr. Lam Cheung Shing Richard

List of Directors and their roles and functions are available on the
websites of Company and the Stock Exchange. Biographical details of
the Directors as at the Latest Practicable Date are set out in the section
of “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” on pages
19 to 22. Mr. Yuan Fuer, a non-executive Director and the Chairman of
the Company, is a brother-in-law of Mr. Hu Xinglong, a non-executive
Director of the Company. Save for the aforementioned relationship, there
are no financial, business, family or other material relationships among
members of the Board.
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The Board meets regularly for reviewing and approving the financial
and operating performance, and considering and approving the overall
strategies and policies of the Company. Apart from the regular board
meetings of the Year, the Board also meets on other occasions when a
Board-level decision on a particular matter is required.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, management provided all
members of the Board with monthly updates giving a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Company’s performance, position
and prospects in sufficient detail.

Day-to-day operational responsibilities are specifically delegated by the
Board to the management under the leadership of the chief executive
officer. Major matters include implementation of the strategies and
decisions approved by the Board and the management assumes full
responsibility to the Board for operations of the Group.

According to code provision C.5.3 of the CG Code, a notice of at least
14 days should be given of a regular board meeting to give all directors
an opportunity to attend; for all other board meetings, reasonable notice
should be given. Due to the practical scheduling issues and with no
objections from any Director, a shorter reasonable notice was given to
the Directors for a number of Board meetings held in 2023.

Meanwhile, according to code provision C.1.6 of the CG Code,
independent non-executive Directors and non-executive Directors should
attend general meetings. At the annual general meeting held on 25 May
2023, all the independent non-executive Directors and the non-executive
Directors were present to enable the Board to develop a balanced
understanding of the views of the shareholders of the Company.

The Company will arrange to furnish all Directors with appropriate
information on all general meetings and take all reasonable measures to
arrange the schedule that all Directors can attend the general meetings in
order to develop a balanced understanding of the views of shareholders.

The Board will continue to review the corporate governance status of the
Company from time to time and make any necessary changes to comply
with the CG Code.
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The attendance record of each Director at Board meetings, audit %i%b‘/\i& ZE=F+ZRA=F+—HILHF
committee meetings, remuneration committee meetings, nomination EEMEES SR  BERZECeE FHE
committee meetings and general meetings during the year ended 31 E&&%  RELZEeezRERS 2 HE
December 2023 is set out in the following table: aﬂﬁﬁﬁ/\\—l—ﬁ :
Audit  Remuneration Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee General
Name of directors Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings
2 EZ888 ENZE0eE FMZEe8E REZE8EE BRRAE
(attendance/ (attendance/ (attendance/ (attendance/ (attendance/
total no. of total no. of total no. of total no. of total no. of
meetings held) ~ meetingsheld) ~ mestingsheld) ~ meetings held) ~ mestings held)
(HRERE/ (bErg/  (HER®/ (LExg/ (HRERE/
BTEZENY) BOSREAY) BTEIERR) BTLRERY) R783EK)
Executive Director HITEZE
Mr. Chung Tin Yan ERLE 4/4 N/A TNEF N/A TNEF N/A TNEH 1
(Chief Executive Officer) (1THRH)
Non-executive Directors FEHTEE
Mr. Yuan Fuer (Chairman) RERAE(ER) 4/4 N/A i N/A i N/A i 1/1
Mr. Hu Xinglong IR 4/4 N/A R N/A R N/A i 1/1
Independent Non-executive BUFHITEE
Directors
Mr. W Jiin REMEE 4/4 3/3 17 1 11
Mr. Du Hongwei HEREE 4/4 3/3 1/1 1/1 1/1
Mr. Lam Cheung Shing Richard MRELE 4/4 3/3 1/1 1/1 1/1
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All Directors were provided with details of agenda items for decisions
making with reasonable notice and were invited to raise any matters in
the agenda of Board meeting. Directors have access to the advice and
services of the company secretary who is responsible for ensuring that
the Board procedures are complied with and advising the Board on
compliance matters. Minutes of Board meetings and meetings of the
Board committees are kept by the company secretary and are opened for
inspection as requested by the Directors. During the Year, the Board was
given sufficient time to review and approve minutes of Board meetings
and meetings of Board committees. The Directors were also provided
with access to independent professional advice, where necessary, in
carrying out their obligations as the Directors, at the expense of the
Company. Directors who are considered to have conflict of interests or
material interests in the proposed transactions or issues to be discussed
would not be counted in the quorum of meeting and would abstain from
voting on the relevant resolution.

All Directors assume the responsibilities to the shareholders of the
Company for the well-being and success of the Company. They are
aware of their duties to act in good faith and in the best interests of the
Company.

The Board is responsible for maintaining proper accounting records so
as to enable the Directors to monitor the Company’s overall financial
position. The Board updates shareholders on the operations and financial
position of the Group through, interim and annual results announcements
as well as the publication of timely announcements of other matters as
prescribed by the relevant rules and regulations.

The Company has three independent non-executive Directors, at
least one of whom has appropriate financial management expertise, in
compliance with the Listing Rules. The Company has received from each
of the independent non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of
his/her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company is of the view that all independent non-executive Directors meet
the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
are independent in accordance with the terms of the guidelines.
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To ensure independent views and input are made available to the
Board, the Board (or through the Board committees) ensures the
following mechanisms are in place and reviews the implementation and
effectiveness of such mechanisms annually:

(1) all Directors should have the required character, integrity,
perspectives, skills, expertise and experience to fulfill their roles and
are encouraged to express their independent views through board
meetings;

(2) all Directors are required to declare conflicts of interest (if any) in
their roles as Directors and Directors who have material interests
shall not vote or be counted in the quorum for the relevant Board
resolutions;

(8)  the Chairman of the Board meets with independent non-executive
Directors annually without the presence of the executive Director
and non-executive Directors; and

(4)  all independent non-executive Directors are required to confirm
in writing on an annual basis their compliance of independence
requirements pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

According to the Company’s Articles of Association (“Articles”), newly
appointed Directors shall hold office until the next annual general meeting
and shall be eligible for re-election at that meeting. Every Director,
including those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2023, the Company had
arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal action against
the Directors.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under code provision of C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of the chairman
of the Company (the “Chairman”) and the chief executive officer of the
Company (the “Chief Executive Officer”) should be separated and should
not be performed by the same individual. The roles of Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer should be separated to ensure a clear division
between the Chairman’s responsibility to manage the Board and the
Chief Executive Officer’s responsibility to manage the Company’s
business. The separation ensures a balance of power and authority so
that power is not concentrated.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, Mr. Chung Tin Yan was
the Chief Executive Officer of the Group, and Mr. Yuan Fuer was
the Chairman of the Group. The roles of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer are segregated. The Chairman’s main role is to lead
the Board in discharging its powers and duties, while the Chief Executive
Officer’s main role is to lead the management of the Company for
undertaking all the responsibilities delegated by the Board and managing
the overall operation of the Group.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors has entered into a service contract with the Company for
a specific term of three years but subject to termination in certain
circumstance as stipulated in the relevant service contracts and
re-election.

ROTATION OF DIRECTORS

At each annual general meeting, one third of the Directors for the time
being (if their number is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest
to but not less than one third) will retire from office by rotation provided
that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an annual general
meeting at least once every three years. Any Director appointed to fill a
casual vacancy or as an addition to the existing board shall hold office
only until the next annual general meeting of the Company and shall then
be eligible for re-election.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for performing corporate governance duties and
has adopted the written terms of reference on its corporate governance
functions. The duties of the Board in respect of the corporate governance
functions include:

(i) developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

(i) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management;

(i) reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv)  developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and the
Directors; and

(v)  reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

Since 2023 and up to the date of this report, the Board has performed
the corporate governance duties in accordance with its terms of
reference.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Board adopted a board
diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) setting out the approach
to achieve diversity on the Board. The Company considered diversity of
board members can be achieved through consideration of a number of
aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills and knowledge. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board.

Measurable objectives

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills and knowledge. The ultimate
decision will be made upon the merits and contributions that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.
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Implementation and monitoring
The Nomination Committee reviewed the Board’s composition under
diversified perspectives, and monitored the implementation of the Board

Diversity Policy annually.

As at the date of this report, the Board’s composition under diversified
perspectives was summarized as follows:

Board diversity
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The Nomination Committee has reviewed the Board Diversity Policy to
ensure its effectiveness and considered that the Group achieved the
objectives of Board Diversity Policy.

In terms of gender diversity, there is currently no female Director on the
Board. The Company recognises the importance and benefits of gender
diversity at the Board level and is committed to continue to identify female
candidates and ensure at least one member of the Board shall be female
by December 2024.
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As at 31 December 2023, the Group had 31 male employees (31
December 2022: 46 male employees) and 63 female employees (31
December 2022: 74 female employees) and the male-to-female ratio in
the workforce, including the senior management, was approximately 3:7
(81 December 2022: 4:6), which is regarded by the Board as satisfactory
and in line with the industry which the Group operates its businesses in.

The Company will continue to take gender diversity into consideration
during recruitment and balance the gender proportion at all levels over
time with the ultimate goal of achieving gender parity, such that there is
a pipeline of female senior management and potential successors to the
Board in the future.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

A remuneration committee of the Board was set up on 22 June 2011
(the “Remuneration Committee”) to oversee the remuneration policy and
structure for all Directors and senior management. The terms of reference
is available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration policy and
structure of the Directors and the senior management and determining
the remuneration packages of all Directors and senior management.
The Remuneration Committee is also responsible for ensuring that no
Director or any of his associates will participate in deciding his/her own
remuneration. The remuneration packages of Directors are determined
by the Remuneration Committee with reference to the performance of the
individual and the Company as well as market practice and conditions.
Members are provided with sufficient resources, including but not limited
1o, the access to independent professional advice, where necessary, in
carrying out their obligations, at the expense of the Company.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the year ended
31 December 2023 for reviewing the remuneration package of the
Directors and the senior management, assessing performance of
Directors, approving the terms of Directors’ service contracts and making
recommendations to the Board as to the remuneration packages of
individual Directors and senior management.
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The Remuneration Committee comprises three members as at the date
of this report namely:

Mr. Du Hongwei (Chairman)

Mr. Wu Jilin

Mr. Lam Cheung Shing Richard

All of the current members are independent non-executive Directors.

In addition, pursuant to the code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, an
analysis of annual remuneration payable to the members of the senior

management by band for the year ended 31 December 2023 is set out
below:
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a nomination committee of the
Board on 22 June 2011 (the “Nomination Committee”) for making
recommendations to the Board on appointment of the Directors and
succession planning of the Directors.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the Board composition, making recommendations to the Board on
the appointment and succession planning of the Directors, assessing
the independence of the independent non-executive Directors and
reviewing the Board Diversity Policy. Members are provided with access
to independent professional advice, where necessary, in carrying their
obligations at the expense of the Company.
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For the policy of nomination of Directors (the “Nomination Policy”), the
Nomination Committee of the Company shall first discuss the nomination
of candidates for new Directors, examine the qualification of these
candidates, and then recommend such candidates to the Board. The
Board shall determine whether the appointment of such candidates
should be proposed for election at the general meetings. The major
criteria considered by the Nomination Committee and the Board are
the candidates’ educational backgrounds, experience in the industry,
their proposed commitment to the Company and achieving the goal of
diversity of the Board. Regarding the nomination of independent non-
executive Directors, the Nomination Committee will also particularly
consider the independence of such candidates taking into account the
independence guidelines set out in Rules 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2023, the Nomination
Committee held one meeting. The members reviewed the current
composition of the Board and discussed about the Board structure to
ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate
for the requirements of the business of the Company pursuant to its
terms of reference (available on the websites of the Company the Stock
Exchange), the Nomination Policy and the Board Diversity Policy.

The Nomination Committee considered current Board composition has
achieved the objectives of the Board Diversity Policy.

In accordance with the Articles, Mr. Chung Tin Yan and Mr. Wu Jilin shall
retire and are eligible to offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

The Nomination Committee recommended the re-appointment of the
Directors standing for re-election at the forthcoming annual general

meeting of the Company.

The Nomination Committee comprises three members as at the date of
this report namely:

Mr. Lam Cheung Shing Richard (Chairman)
Mr. Wu Jilin
Mr. Du Hongwei

All of the current members are independent non-executive Directors.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
MEBRBREBEZERERA A

BARESNRABER([REBE])  ARFRE
FZECHRAWBNEENREAE  HES
RENETERELE  BREFSHEBEAHIK
BA EEQRAEROBREABRREANE
HRXBERAGER - RERBEQREFEM
ZRNIZEERFHAREANHESR 17
&R HRHARRNBRARENLESS
KEZTLBIRRERBER - BIRREILIFH
TEEMS @ REZESNERHIFH LHRA
FEIIBMRRT LB MR IE S E A B IREAN
BINE o

REZEEXHE_ZT_=F+_A=+—H
IMBERBIT-REE - RELZBENER
NEEGBERARTIRBABRESTE IR
B BREFSREEBESE(RARFR
BT HERN)  REBEREEFEZ
THEBRREBEARRERTEZEEMR
REE R R E T ERG T

RAZEERRESERRNERCERES
EZTTEBRRHBR

RIBAR) - ERITEERREMEEANER
BERBFARE BREW S ERBEEET -

RAZBEEFNARFRERRBFAE L
ENREREECZES -

RARERH  REEZEGHUT=EKEHA
A

MRBERE(ERE)

REMEE

MRERE

ERR/ENBYRBIIFNTES -



Corporate Governance Report

TRERBWE

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee of the Board on
22 June 2011 (the “Audit Committee”) with written terms of reference
(available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange) that
set out the authorities and duties of the Audit Committee adopted by the
Board. The Audit Committee performs, amongst others, the following
functions:

° reviewing the financial information of the Group;

° reviewing the relationship with and the terms of appointment of the
external auditors; and

° overseeing the Company’s financial reporting system, internal
control system and risk management system.

The Audit Committee is given sufficient resources to oversee the internal
control system of the Group, reports to the Board on any material issues,
and makes recommendations to the Board. During the year under review,
the Audit Committee reviewed the Group’s annual results and annual
report for the year ended 31 December 2022, and the interim results and
interim report for the six months ended 30 June 2023, the accounting
principles and policies adopted by the Group, the financial reporting
and compliance procedures, the Company’s internal control and risk
management systems and processes, the effectiveness of Company’s
internal audit function and the re-appointment of the external auditors.

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the year ended 31
December 2023.

The Audit Committee comprises three members as at the date of this
report namely:

Mr. Wu Jilin (Chairman)

Mr. Du Hongwei

Mr. Lam Cheung Shing Richard

All the members are independent non-executive Directors. None of the

members of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the Company’s
existing external auditors.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board has overall responsibility for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Group’s
strategic objectives, maintaining sound systems of risk management and
internal controls and reviewing their effectiveness to safeguard interests
of the Group as a whole. However, such systems are designed to
manage the Group’s risks within an acceptable risk profile, rather than to
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives of the Group,
they can only provide reasonable assurance but not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has established an on-going process for identifying, evaluating
and managing the significant risks faced by the Group. This process
includes enhancing the systems of risk management and internal
control in view of the changes to the business environment or regulatory
guidelines.

Management assists the Board in the implementation of the Group’s
policies, procedures and controls by identifying and assessing the
risks faced, and in the design, operation and monitoring of suitable
internal controls to mitigate and control these risks. The adequacy and
effectiveness of the systems of risk management and internal controls
of the Group are annually reviewed by the Board. The review covers all
material controls including financial, operational and compliance controls
as well as the process for the identification, evaluation and management
of the significant risks faced by the Company and the Group. The Board
also reviews the adequacy of resources, employees’ qualifications
and experience, their training programs, and budget of the Group’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions. The Board
has conducted and completed such review in respect of the year ended
31 December 2023 and considers the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group effective and adequate.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE
INFORMATION

For the purposes of handling and disseminating inside information
in accordance with the Listing Rules and the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Cap 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Company has
in place a policy on handling and dissemination of inside information
(“Policy”) which sets out the procedures and internal controls for handling
and dissemination of inside information in a timely manner in such a way
SO as not to place any person in a privileged dealing position and to allow
time for the market to price the listed securities of the Company with the
latest available information. This Policy also provides guidelines to staff of
the Company to ensure proper safeguards exist to prevent the Company
from breaching the statutory disclosure requirements. It also includes
appropriate internal control and reporting systems to identify and assess
potential inside information. Dissemination of inside information of the
Company shall be conducted by publishing the relevant information on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company, according to the
requirements of the Listing Rules.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR AND AUDITORS’
REMUNERATION

The statement of the external auditor of the Company on their reporting
responsibilities and opinion on the Group’s financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2023 is set out in the section headed
“Independent Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering the appointment of
the external auditor and reviewing any non-audit functions performed by
the external auditor, including whether such non-audit functions could
lead to any potential material adverse effect on the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group has incurred an
aggregate fee of HK$1,100,000 to the external auditor and its affiliate.
Among such fee, the amount of HK$900,000 was paid for the final
audit purposes and HK$200,000 was paid to its affiliate for non-audit
purposes including interim review and other review engagements. The
non-audit services mainly consist of consulting services in relation to the
environmental, social and governance reporting, risk assessment and
review on financing reporting procedures and internal control system, as
well as due diligence work over new projects.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements for each financial year which gives a true and fair view. In
preparing the financial statements, appropriate accounting policies and
standards are selected and applied consistently.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary is responsible for ensuring that the Board
procedures are followed and facilitating communications among the
Directors as well as with shareholders and management.

During 2023, Mr. Chung Tin Yan has attended relevant professional
training to update his skills and knowledge. He met the training
requirements as required under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that maintaining a high level of transparency is
a key to enhance investor relations. It is committed to a policy of open
and timely disclosure of corporate information to its shareholders and the
public.

The Company updates its shareholders on its latest business
developments and financial performance through its annual and interim
reports.

The website of the Company (www.legend-strategy.com) has provided
an effective communication platform to the public and the shareholders.

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENT

The Company has not made any change to its constitutional documents
during the year ended 31 December 2023. A consolidated version of
the Company’s constitutional documents is available on the Company’s
website and the website of the Stock Exchange.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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INDUCTION AND CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Each newly appointed Director receives a formal, comprehensive
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to
ensure appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the
Company and full awareness of Director’s responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
Company has continuously provided relevant training materials to the
Directors. Directors participated in continuous development relating to
their roles, functions and duties of a listed company director or further
enhancement of their professional development by the way of attending
training courses or reading relevant materials. All Directors had provided
the Company their training confirmations for the year under review. The
Directors and officers are indemnified under a Directors’ and officers’
liability insurance against any liability incurred by them in discharge
of their duties while holding office as the Directors and officers of the
Company. The Directors and officers shall not be indemnified where there
is any fraud, breach of duty or breach of trust proven against them.
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DIVIDEND AND DIVIDEND POLICY

The Group did not declare nor pay any dividends to shareholders of the
Group during the Year.

The payment and the amount of any dividends, if paid, will depend on
the results of operations, cash flows, financial condition, statutory and
regulatory restrictions on the payment of dividends by the Group, future
prospects and other factors that the Directors may consider relevant.
Holders of the shares will be entitled to receive such dividends pro rata
according to the amounts paid up or credited as paid up on the shares.
The declaration of payment and amount of dividends will be subject to
the Directors’ discretion.

Dividends may be paid only out of the Group’s distributable profits as
permitted under the relevant laws. To the extent profits are distributed
as dividends, such portion of profits will not be able to be reinvested in
the Group’s operations. There can be no assurance that the Directors
will be able to declare or distribute any dividend in the amount set out
in any plan of the Board or at all. The dividend distribution record in the
past may not be used as a reference or basis to determine the level of
dividends that may be declared or paid by the Group in the future.

SHAREHOLDER COMMUNICATION

The Company has adopted a shareholders communication policy with
objectives to provide our shareholders with detailed information about
the Company so that they can exercise their rights as shareholders
in an informed manner. The Company would review the shareholders
communication policy on a regular basis.

The Company uses a range of communication tools to ensure its
shareholders are kept well informed of key business imperatives, including
annual general meeting, annual report, various notices, announcements
and circulars. Procedures for demanding a poll have been included in
circulars accompanying notice convening a general meeting and such
procedures have been read out by the chairman of the general meeting.
The annual general meeting and other general meetings of the Company
are primary forum for communication between the Company and its
shareholders. The Company shall provide shareholders with relevant
information on the resolution(s) proposed at a general meeting in a timely
manner in accordance with the Listing Rules. The information provided
shall be reasonably necessary to enable shareholders to make an
informed decision on the proposed resolution(s). At the annual general
meeting held on 25 May 2023 (the “2023 AGM”), a separate resolution
was proposed by the chairman of the meeting in respect of each
separate issue, including re-election of the Directors.
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At the 2023 AGM, the executive Directors, the chairmen of the Audit,
Remuneration and Nomination Committees and representatives from
the auditor of the Company, HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited, were
present for questions from shareholders. There was one general meeting
held during the year ended 31 December 2023.

The Board has reviewed the implementation of the shareholders’
communications policy and is satisfied that it is effective for the Board
to understand the views and opinion of the shareholders through the
available channels.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO
CONVENE AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL
MEETING

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose new resolutions
at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands Companies Act (2021
Revision). However, shareholders are requested to follow article 58 of the
Articles, general meetings shall be convened on the written requisition of
any one or more members holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the secretary to the
Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board
fails to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred
by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

RIZ-_=_FRRBEFAEL HATEF &
ZEZEE  FHEREEMRERZEERAZE
FARARRRZBMB S MEFMERA
AIZRRBEHFERERRZER - BE-F
T=FFA=THIEFER - ARRIHE
T—IRBRKE °

EXCEMARRBBRENNTER - X1E
MEESRBAARBTHERRNBEEINE
EBYH]

BRREFARRENAENERF

MEHSARNE(ZTZ—FEIA) WLEIEX
RFFRRNERAEG LIRZFIREER - AT
PRERABAEARISES8FANA - BMES — sk
N ERRBERE BRFATPRARRIBRK
KB TRMNERRBFRRAELERE)+52
—HRR - AIBRAESSRARAWEED
EHEXR  BREFSARBRRENAE - U
RIEEEELAEANENEER  AEASA
RIBFEZZREMEQ)EARNET - HIRFR
“tRNBERE=EEREARARERE - B
REELKMALTABTAERIREBRAS
MARBAREGRERNATHEENESS
RAEBRAEMELENMARERX -

Annual Report 2023
R FEER

41




mmmm m § Corporate Governance Report

.

TRERBWE

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO
PROPOSE A PERSON FOR ELECTION AS A
DIRECTOR

The provisions for a shareholder to propose a person for election as a
Director of the Company are laid down under article 85 of the Articles.
No person other than a Director retiring at the meeting shall, unless
recommended by the Board for election, be eligible for election to the
office of Director at any general meeting unless a notice in writing of the
intention to propose such person for election as a Director, signed by
a shareholder (other than the person to be proposed for election as a
Director) duly qualified to attend and vote at the meeting for which such
notice is given, and a notice in writing signed by such person of his
willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at the head office or at
the registration office. The minimum length of the period during which
such notices are given shall be at least seven (7) days and the period for
lodgment of such notices shall commence no earlier than the day after
the dispatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such
election and end no later than seven (7) days prior to the date of such
general meeting. Detailed procedures for shareholders to propose a
person for election as a Director are available on the Company’s website.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO PUT
FORWARD PROPOSAL

If a shareholder wishes to make any proposal at any general meeting
of the Company, the shareholder should deposit a written notice of
the proposal to the company secretary of the Company within 7 days
commencing from the date of the notice of the general meeting of the
Company (or such other period as may be determined and announced
by the Director from time to time).

PROCEDURES FOR SENDING ENQUIRIES TO
THE BOARD

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company, for the
attention of the company secretary, by email: info@Isih.com.hk, or mail
to Suite 1702, 17/F, World-Wide House, 19 Des Voeux Road Central,
Central, Hong Kong.
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INFORMATION DISCLOSURE

The Company discloses information in compliance with the Listing Rules
and publishes periodic reports and announcements to the public in
accordance with the relevant laws and regulations. The primary focus of
the Company is to ensure information disclosure is timely, fair, accurate,
truthful and complete, thereby enabling shareholders, investors as well as
the public to make rational and informed decisions.

CONCLUSION

The Company believes that good corporate governance could ensure an
effective distribution of the resources and shareholders’ interests. The
senior management will continue endeavors in maintaining, enhancing
and increasing the Group’s corporate governance level and quality.
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PRINCIPLES

The Group hereby presents this Environmental, Social and Governance
report (“ESG report”) for the year ended 31 December 2023, in order
to comply with the requirements set forth in Environmental, Social and
Governance (the “ESG”) Reporting Guide of the Listing Rules. This covers
the environmental and social performance of the core business of the
Group in the PRC (the “People’s Republic of China”) during the period
from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023 (the “Year”).

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of its business,
as well as providing support to environmental protection and the
communities in which it operates. Quality accommodation services
are delivered to customers by the Group, and its business is managed
prudently under sound decision-making processes. The Group seeks to
balance the views and interests of the stakeholders through constructive
conversation with a purpose to set the course for long-term prosperity.

The board of Directors (the “Board”) is responsible for evaluating and
determining the ESG risks of the Group, and ensuring that relevant risk
management and internal control systems are in place and operate
effectively.

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE
Board’s oversight of ESG issues

The Board has a primary role in overseeing the Group’s ESG issues.
During the Year, the Board, the management and ESG responsible
staff evaluated the impacts of ESG-related risks towards the operation
and formulated ESG-related policies in dealing with relevant risks. The
oversight of the Board ensures that the management and the ESG
responsible staff can have all the right tools and resources to oversee the
ESG issues.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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To demonstrate the Group’s commitment to transparency and
accountability, the management and ESG responsible staff review and
evaluate the Group’s performance in respect of ESG issues and report to
the Board regularly.

ESG management approach and strategy for material ESG-
related issues

To better understand the opinions and expectations of different
stakeholders on the ESG issues, materiality assessment is conducted
annually. The Group ensures various platforms, and channels of
communication are used to reach, listen and respond to its key
stakeholders. Through communication with the stakeholders, the Group is
able to understand the expectations and concerns from its stakeholders.
The feedbacks obtained allow the Group to make more informed
decisions, and to better assess and manage the resulting impacts of the
business decisions.

The Group has evaluated the materiality for each of the ESG aspects
through the following steps: (i) identification of ESG issues by the Group;
(i) key ESG areas prioritisation with stakeholder engagement; and (iii)
validation and determining material ESG issues based on the results of
communication with the stakeholders.

Taking these steps enhances the understanding of the expectations and
concerns of the Group’s stakeholders on various ESG issues, which
enable the Board to plan the sustainable development direction to
address material ESG-related issues in the future.

Progress review made against ESG-related goals and
targets

ESG-related goals and targets have been set to provide a strategic
direction in business operations, the progress is closely reviewed by the
Group from time to time. Modification may be needed if the progress falls
short of expectation or there is a change of business operations.

The Group’s sustainability target enables the Company to develop a
realistic roadmap and focus on the results. The sustainability performance
and progress made against the goals are reported to the Board for
review at least annually.
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REPORTING PRINCIPLES

The report is centred on four principles:

Materiality: Stakeholder engagement and materiality assessment were
conducted regularly to identify material ESG issues, and to ensure that
these issues are addressed in the report.

Quantitative: Data presented in this report have been collected prudently.
Please refer to the data for emissions, waste production and resources
consumption for standards and methodologies used for calculation of
key performance indicators.

Balance: Both positive and negative sides of the performance have been
presented in a transparent manner.

Consistency: Unless otherwise stated, the disclosures, data collection
and calculation methods have remained consistent throughout the years
to facilitate comparability over time.

REPORTING BOUNDARIES

The Group is principally engaged in accommodation operations,
provision of consultations and property facilities management services
and other related businesses. During the Year, the Group operates five
leased accommodation branches. The five branches are located at
Nanshan District (the “Nanshan Branch”) and Baoan District (the “Baoan
Branch”) in Shenzhen, in Huizhou city (the “Huizhou Branch”), Chengdu
city (the “Chengdu Branch”) and Wuhan city (the “Wuhan Branch”) of the
PRC respectively (collectively, the “Five Branches”). The Five Branches
have 653 rooms in total. In addition, certain green renovations of the Five
Branches have been completed in 2022 in order to attract more guests
and boost the revenue of the Group. The report covers the Five Branches
and includes the key performance indicators (KPIs) in the environmental
and social aspects.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

Stakeholder engagement plays a core role in the sustainability of the
Group. The Group fully appreciates the needs to build both online
and offline communication channels and to provide stakeholders with
timely reports on strategic planning and performance of the Group in
order to establish a continuing communication mechanism with the
stakeholders. In addition, the Group consults the stakeholders on their
recommendations and propositions to ensure its business practices can
meet the expectations of the stakeholders. Through regular engagement
with key stakeholders, the Group is able to identify major concerns and
proceed to formulating a response.

The stakeholders include the shareholders, governments and regulatory
bodies, employees, customers, suppliers, society and the public. The
Group discusses with the stakeholders through various channels about
their expectations and relevant feedback of the Group as below:

FtrE2 0

RNE2RERNKENAFHERRPEZZL
At  ARERAFTELRER LG TEAER
B WREAFHDERMGE RAREBE RS
REBORE - BARBHERLRIUEEE
i o dEAh - NEBEFD FHEoRERE MIRE -
UHEREEBERNARNE ML - BBT
ZRNENTH2HE  AKEEMR T EH
RENE TF I E R -

RNEERER BRREERE BB 7
P HER HERAR AREEBZRER
BESHEISRENE  MAKBENHERRE
LI

Stakeholders Expectations Communication and feedback
& HE BERRE
Shareholders o Financial results ° Improving profitability
R iR wrEANEN
° ESG performance o Monitoring use of resources
RE - HEgRERRHE ESRIEIRER
o Corporate transparency o Regular information disclosures
PEFERE EHEREE
° Sound risk control ° Optimising risk management and internal
o MR RIE S control
B R E TR & A ER T
Governments and ° Compliance with laws and regulations Compliance operation
regulatory bodies P IAD) KRB AHKE
T R BE B e e Tax payment in accordance with laws e  Tax payment in full and on time
BOEANT RIS R
° Compliance with environmental ° Compliance of environmental policies
regulations BFIRIBHCR
BFIREAR D
Employees o Career development platform o Transparent promotion mechanism
(== BEERTS AR 1
° Salary and benefits ° Competitive salary and employee benefits
Fra KAz BT hnEe kiE SR
° Occupational health and safety ° Providing trainings for employees and
BEREEREZR strengthening their safety awareness

ReftEBFII RN L 2T H
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Stakeholders Expectations Communication and feedback

HE e BRERNE

Customers ° Service quality ° Monitoring the customers’ satisfaction
®P AR 77K #E level through enquiry and questionnaire

o Customer information security
BRERLZE

° Customer rights and interests
protection

B F iR

Suppliers ° Business ethics and credibility
HrEm EEEERER
o Integrity cooperation

AL

Society and the public o Environmental protection
HERAR RIBRE
o Employment opportunities
MEHRSE
o Caring company and social
responsibility
ME RNt gaE T

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

During the Year, the Group conducted a comprehensive materiality
assessment, which involved group discussions, interviews and a survey
with internal and external stakeholders to identify “material issues” and
reflect the environment, social and operational issues which have the
most significant impacts on the Company’s business and the relevant
issues which are of concern to the stakeholders.

With reference to the scope of disclosure as required under the ESG
Reporting Guide, as well as taking into consideration its business
features, the Group has identified and determined 24 issues covering
greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emission, energy consumption, employee
welfare, occupational health and safety, training and development, supply
chain management, customer privacy, anti-corruption, and community
investment with respect to its business operation.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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° Customer privacy protection
BRPILERE
° Complaint handling mechanism

ERELPEiy il

° Performing the contracts according to law
HOEBR
o Building a responsible supply chain

By BasTaitEsE

° Putting into use environmental protections
and energy saving equipment
HIRIRET B R IRA L

° Providing equal opportunities for all
employees
RHMBEI AT #E

° Community investment
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Materiality of ESG issues
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L%W Importance of topics to business H‘%g”

) HEBHNEERE
Environmental issues Social issues Operation issues
REAE HESFE EENME
1. Greenhouse gas emissions 8.  Community contribution 16.  Anti-corruption
1. RERBYM 8. wEER 16. RES
2. Energy consumption and 9.  Occupational health and safety 17.  Supply chain management

resource management 9. BEREERZE 17. fLEEER
2. RERENRARER 10.  Child labour 18. Supplier evaluation and selection
3. Water resources management 10. ET 18. HpEmEHL RiEE
3. KERERE 11.  Forced and compulsory labour 19. Customer service and satisfaction
4. Waste management 11, 583B 5845 19. BPRBERBEE
4. BEEYER 12, Training and development 20. Customer privacy
5. Use of packaging materials 12, FIIEERE 20. BB
5  BEMEHEA 13. Salaries and employee benefits ~ 21. Feedback and complaint handling
6.  Impact on the environment 13, KRB TEAR 21, BRMIEFRE
6. HRENTE 14. Diversity and equal opportunity ~ 22.  Product safety and quality
7. Climate change 14. Znt Rk FEKks 22, ERLENEEEE
7. KR 15. Talent attraction and retention 23. Intellectual property protection

15. WS RIEB AL 23. (REMBERE
24. Marketing and labelling
24. 1THHEMRTR
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EMISSIONS

The Group is principally engaged in accommodation operations,
provision of consultations and property facilities management services
and other related businesses. Hence, the emissions relating to air, GHG
emissions and discharge into the water and land, as well as generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste are minimal in the Year.

During the Year, the major GHG emissions of the Five Branches were
the GHG generated by the electricity consumption and the waste paper
disposal at landfills. In order to minimise the energy consumption and
waste paper of the Five Branches, various sustainable development
measures have been enforced to address environmental responsibilities
within normal operating procedures, including but not limited to (i)
installing compact fluorescent lamp as many as possible in the Five
Branches for the Year; (ii) installing switch on and off sensors in the
corridors; (i) encouraging staff to switch off the electronic devices, lights
and air-conditioners after the use of a room or leaving office for a period
of time such as during lunch hour; (vi) replacing air-conditioners with low
efficiency or malfunction in the Year; (v) keeping refrigerators away from
sunlight; and (vi) encouraging staff to print only when necessary and use
recycle papers in first priority for printing so far as practicable.

Other air pollutants include nitrogen oxides (“NO,”), sulphur oxides (“SO”)
and particulate matter (“PM”), which have adverse effects on the climate,
ecosystems, air quality, habitats, agriculture, and human and animal
health. The Group generates other air pollutants through the use of its
motor vehicles.
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Gaseous Emissions from the Use of Motor Vehicles

ERREELAREIER

Air emissions (Note) Unit 2023 2022
BEER B (PFE) B —E-=f —E-—F
NO, Kilogram (“Kg”)

A& yNIN(N D) 2.10 2.12
SO, Kg

=Rl /Ny 0.05 0.05
PM Kg

R IRL Ny 0.15 0.16

Note: The emission factors used to calculate the NO,, SO, and PM are sourced
from: the Hong Kong Environmental Protection Department’s (“EPD”)
EMFAC-HK Vehicle Emission Calculation model and the United States
Environmental Protection Agency’s Vehicle Emission Modeling Software —
MOBILE 6.1; and the assumptions of 80% relative humidity, a temperature
of 25 degrees Celsius, an average speed of 30kmh, and include running
exhaust emissions only.

Reduction target of air emissions

Mz - ARETEAR|Y - WA b KB e
WMEFRRR : BARRREZ([RRE])
#) EMFAC-HK Vehicle Emission Calculation /5
BHMGTEE R R BIRE (R & F & Vehicle
Emission Modeling Software ;5 B £ i 1% & #¢
4+ —MOBILE 6.1 : RIREEEIZE80% - &
ER|K25E - FHRRG/DRHIOLNERER
FEITERRERIEME °

B SR PE YR BE B AR

Air emissions intensity Reduction Target Baseline Year Status
BERER > BE WEEEE HEF AREE

NO, intensity Reduce 1% by 2024 2019 In progress
A&y BE RZZE_NFERIMA1% ZE-NF TR
SO, intensity Reduce 1% by 2024 2019 In progress
meEly  BE RZZ_NFEEAR1% —E-NEF HEITHR

PM intensity Reduce 1% by 2024 2019 In progress
BORRL - BE RZZE_MNFEARD1% —E-NF TR
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GHG emissions from operations EEELNBREREBEK
GHG Emissions Unit 2023 2022
BEREHEN By —E_= —E-_—F
GHG emissions (Scope 1) Tonnes of Carbon dioxide equivalent
REREYER(EBE) (“Tonnes of CO,€”)

AREET — b hixE ([ LAMEG — b ik E 2 8.8 8.9
GHG emissions (Scope 2)* Tonnes of COe
REREEHEN(HE2)" AMEET — bR E 2 1,493.8 1,360.9
GHG emissions (Scope 3) Tonnes of COe
RERBEEER(SEE3) SAMEE — L B 36.3 34.1
Total Tonnes of COe
ko ARBET — bk E 2 1,538.9 1,403.9
Branch gross floor area Square meter (“m?”)
DIEREmE FFARAFRAK]D) 36,853 36,853
GHG intensity Tonnes of CO,e/m?
RERETE SAEE — S &K 0.0418 0.0381

* The emission factor of electricity consumed is sourced from the

*

China Southern Power Grid in 2021. The figures are calculated in
accordance with the “Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs”.
The figures are restated for consistent comparison purpose.

“ERCFRRENNHREFIIRE
TEIFE T EH - BURIRIRERERIRE xﬂ(
BRERESIHERS  LERR—

KEF -

Ig?ﬁﬁ/“bﬁ ﬁ;%mﬂ,/ﬁﬂ& /EE

Scope 1: It represents mainly the gasoline and diesel oil consumed by — #[E1 :
motor vehicles.

Scope 2: It represents mainly the electricity purchased from power & [E?2 :
suppliers in China.

Scope 3: It represents mainly the paper waste disposed at landfills, #3[E3 :

water used and other indirect emission.
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Reduction target of GHG emissions

GHG Emissions Reduction Target

BEREHERRERR

Baseline Year Status

BEREHN WHER R BHEF e

GHG emission intensity (Scope 1) Reduce 1% by 2024 2019 In progress
RERBBEENEE (FEN) RZZ_NFEEAR1% —NE HEITH

GHG emission intensity (Scope 2) Reduce 1% by 2024 2019 In progress
RERBBHENEE ($E2) RZZTZNEEAR1% — 4 HEITH

GHG emission intensity (Scope 3) Reduce 1% by 2024 2019 Achieved
mERBENEE (HE3) RZZBEZNFERRA1% —NF EERK

Waste produced from operations EEEENEEY

Waste Unit 2023 2022
=317 By —EC-=F —B-C=F
Hazardous waste produced Tonnes N/A N/A
BEEYES 148 TEA ANiE A
Intensity (per total area of operations) Tonnes/m? N/A N/A
FE(BEELHER) W8, 75K ANiE R ANiE
Non-hazardous waste produced Tonnes

FEEREMEL 17 125.0 141.4
Intensity (per total area of operations) Tonnes/m?

HE(GEBRmE) g, oK 0.003 0.004

Reduction target of hazardous and non-hazardous waste

EENBERRYREZTERYORIE

produced =

Waste Reduction Target Baseline Year Status

BEEY bk A=k = HEF HREE

Hazardous waste produced N/A N/A N/A
intensity

EENBEEBRENTE TE A TE A TE A

Non-hazardous waste produced Reduce 1% by 2024 2019 Achieved
intensity

EFrNEEREENTE RZZZMFEERIRA1% —E-NF BEX
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No hazardous wastes are generated from the accommodation
operations, provision of consultations and property facilities management
services and other related businesses. Non-hazardous wastes generated
from the operations in the Five Branches are mainly from office and
room consumables. The staff of each branch has promoted separation
of waste such as cartons and plastic bottles, which are placed in certain
areas assigned to recycled suppliers for collection. For the consumables
such as cans and used plastic bottles of water, the building management
offices of landlords have separated them from other waste for recycling
purposes.

Moreover, due to the relaxation of epidemic prevention policies, the
occupancy rates of the rooms in the Five Branches have increased
throughout the Year, resulting in a direct rise in the total consumption of
electricity and water, and ultimately contributing to an increase in GHG
emissions.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

The Group is not aware of any non-compliance with the Environmental
Protection Law of the PRC and other applicable laws and regulations that
has an impact relating to air and GHG emissions, discharges into water
and land, generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste of the
Group in the Year.

No fines or non-monetary sanctions for non-compliance with relevant
laws and regulations had been reported in the Year.
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USE OF RESOURCES

The Group is committed to minimising the impact of business activities on
the environment and supporting environmental protection programmes.
In particular, a number of initiatives, which are designed to conserve
resources, were introduced to promote employee awareness of the need
to achieve efficient utilisation of resources.

As mentioned in the above “Emissions” section, the Group has a series of
policies and procedures to minimise the electricity used by the employees
in the Five Branches. In order to increase the electricity consumption
efficiency, a number of new light emitting diodes (“LED”) lightings were
installed in the Year. Other than the above, solar water heaters and
heat pumps have been installed in Nanshan Branch to generate daily
hot water supply in order to reduce gas or electricity consumption. In
addition, shower sprinklers with low water pressure were installed in all
bathrooms of the Five Branches to reduce water consumption and water
intensity. During the Year, there was no issue in sourcing water that is fit
for purpose.

BERER

AEBRNAELHEDHBENTE UK
TRBHREER - BRI SESOER
Ml REATHEEARMAERNE
o

SN £ HEp | —&ifra - AREBR AR D
ERBEZEBRREMEFURVEEREE -
REAERE REAFELTRTEX_BE
(TLED])BRER o Br it bASN - BIILJE IR E &8
AIZaeRUKEE REKER - BURE A E 2K H
FE R ME R EIERE o o RPITFER
AEDEN2IAELRREEKEOMNAE
BH - BB KERKEE c RAFEA - I
HEEBRHSIOEE KR EE -

Relevant Consumptions from operations EEEENEBER
Resources Consumed Unit 2023 2022
& RHH B —g-=f =—¥-=f
Energy Consumption
HERHFE
Electricity consumption kWh
BHEME F R 2,656,219 2,460,678
Fuel consumption (Note) kWh
BREDEFE (BEE) TR 32,050 32,350
Total energy consumption kWh
HEEIRERE TR 2,688,269 2,493,028
Energy consumption intensity (per ~ kWh/M?

total area of operations)
BB E (B2 ERmE) TREFHK 72.9 67.6
Water Consumption
K¥E
Water consumption Cubic metre (“m?®”)
IKFE SRS AK]) 67,784 60,965
Water consumption intensity (per msé/m?

total area of operations)
KEEE (BEEREE) SRR 1.8 1.7

Note: The conversion factors used to calculate the units to kWh are sourced from
the Energy Statistics Manual issued by the International Energy Agency.

BEE - S EAIETE A T L PR AR E 1R B B
BERE BRI BERGET T -
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As the Group is principally engaged in accommodation operations,
provision of consultations and property facilities management services
and other related businesses, no packaging material was used in the

Year.

Reduction target of resources consumption

mAAEEEERFAREE - REEALY
E£RITRREZINWETY - NAFE LR
R -

BRUHFAREE B &R

Resource Consumed Reduction Target Baseline Year Status
EIRUHFE WEHEEE HEF R
Energy consumption intensity Reduce 1% by 2024 2019 In progress
BEREREE RZZEZNFERRA1% ZE-NF TR
Water consumption intensity Reduce 1% by 2024 2019 In progress
KHEEZE RZT_NFEEARD1% —T—hF HETH

Regarding the accommodation operations, the Group closely monitors ~ FLEBA LM S @ AEB R E R H 5 /H M8
the level of energy consumption and GHG emissions of its Branches. JREFEMBZEREHEBUKT - AEDESFH
Every year, the Five Branches are required to set their respective energy 7B E& BREERERME « KRR K
use efficiency, water efficiency and carbon reduction targets, and come  #iiEHEB1Z - S HIFE AT TIE M IAER BAZ - A
up with feasible measures to achieve them. The details and results ZEZEMFBERERSHNWOT ¢

achieved are listed as follows:

Projects
EHHE

Targets, steps taken and results achieved

B - I EEREEHER

LED and compact fluorescent lamps
LED &2 12 S fi

Shower heads
TEBER

Robotic window cleaners

Wz NEE

Number of LED lamps have been installed in the Five Branches in order to
save electricity and have saved up much electricity as compared with using
incandescent light lamps. For Chengdu Branch, aisle lightings on floors are
turned off when no guests are staying, and restored when the floors are
occupied.

REEEN > AP EERLEZELEDE - EEABBBEELEHEAREE
He KEENS - BEBRERNRBENZERHR - 28EE AR
1EhReA -

Using water savings shower heads in the bathroom of the Five Branches,
relevant consumption of water is saved after installation.
RERDEAEFEREKEERE - LREEEEEEAK -

Using robotic window cleaners in rooms of Baoan Branch, in order to save
electricity and have reduced water consumption for cleaning and increased
cleaning efficiency.

RERIENEESHRAKSABRER  WEBCKHNABELRDERAKE

FARBBRREK -
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Projects

"H

Targets, steps taken and results achieved

B - IR BEREENER

Air-source heat pumps

Air-conditioners
=

Non-Hazardous waste

FBEERED

Air-source heat pumps have been installed in Nanshan Branch and Baoan
Branch to generate daily hot water supply in order to reduce electricity
consumption and thus reduce emissions. The consumption of electricity is
reduced in the Nanshan Branch and Baoan Branch for water heating.
BLEREREERRERRARHEMABAK  HORE - RTRDH
e mIERERENRKAEEEREL

Energy saving signs are displayed to remind staff to turn off air-conditioners
after use to promote energy saving in the Five Branches. Moreover in
Chengdu Branch, since independent air-conditioners are installed in all guest
rooms, the aisle air-conditioners on each floor are controlled and switched
automatically according to the temperature.

TS ERAREE RS - IR TR ARz uﬂ ﬁa&ﬁﬁﬁ% o fEAh
REKEE - BERPIEREHLRRBE TR  SEENREERATIBRERR
| Ry o

Non-hazardous waste produced by the Five Branches include packaging
materials of guest rooms supplies, paper for office use and kitchen waste
from restaurants. Each branch made its best effort to minimise the impact
on the environment by using biodegradable material for packaging materials
of guest rooms supplies. The Five Branches promoted separation of waste
such as cartons and plastic bottles, which are placed in certain areas assigned
to recycled suppliers for collection.
TRDEELREEEMEEEERMERYE  BAEREREBE 4
REY) - ZRRIEFEBERERAmBRYEHRB A EERYE  [RERDREY
2 - AMDEHESEY (NEMERERBR) S E - MER SR T EWHERS
ETEREHEKE -

THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES RERXAEIR

The Group always promotes energy-saving awareness among the staff of A &EE—ERAM D EE TIEEH R EH
the Five Branches, reminding them to switch off all lighting and electronic ~ HeB8 B T M& A 1% F8 Eﬁﬁﬁﬁk’*ﬁ%&;&@??&%
devices after use. On the other hand, guests are reminded of the H»—HHE ' BBERE D ERERREFEIRR K

/\’A’ ok

importance of energy reduction through the display of energy-saving tips E’Q‘%%Eﬁlﬁ = HE AR T - REE R ELEEIR
in lobbies of each branch and written reminders placed in guest rooms. MERIE -

The impact on the environment and natural resources from the AFE @ AEBERPENEBESELRERE
accommodation operations of the Group in the PRC is minimal in the ~ ABREX BT EHRAHES

Year.
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CLIMATE CHANGE

Awareness over climate change continues to grow and is one of the
most discussed topics among companies. The Group is no exception in
increasing its awareness over the potential impact from climate change
on the Group’s business and operation.

In accordance to the reporting framework developed by the Task Force
on Climate-related Financial Disclosures, there are two major categories
of climate-related risks, physical risks and transitional risks, which may
impact the business. Physical risks are risks related to physical impacts
of climate change which can be driven by events such as floods and
typhoons (acute risks) or longer-term shifts in climate patterns such as
sustained high temperatures and sea level rise (chronic risks). Transitional
risks are risks related to the transition to a lower-carbon economy, which
may entail policy, legal, technology, and market changes to address
mitigation and adaptation requirements related to climate change.

For physical risks, the Group has developed a contingency plan for
extreme weather. For transitional risks, the Group regularly reviews global
and local government policies, regulatory updates and market trends
to identify potential climate-related risks which may have an impact on
the Group’s business operation. The Group will develop a response
plan when necessary such as by changing the business strategy and
modifying the development plan in order to reduce the negative impacts
of such climate-related risks.

The Group will continuously incorporate sustainable practices in its
business operations and prepare and maintain sufficient resources for
managing identified climate-related risks and studying the potential
remediation measures.

During the Year, there was no climate-related risk, including physical risks
and transitional risks that had a significant impact to the Group.

EMPLOYMENT

The Group places a significant emphasis on developing human capital
and provides competitive remuneration and welfare packages. Promotion
opportunities and salary adjustments are benchmarked against individual
performance. Employees are entitled to benefits such as annual leave,
sick leave, maternity leave, marriage leave, funeral leave and medical
coverage in accordance with local regulations.
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Distribution of work force of the Five Branches are classified by different
categories as follows:

AN ER TR D ENLEB N DMAT

Social Performance Unit 2023 2022
HERR B —BI=F —EBCF
By Gender

b q ez lE-{bs)

Male Person

B A 18 (24%) 32 (34%)
Female Person

gegis A 58 (76%) 63 (66%)
By Age Group

RERERE S

Under 30 years old Person

305RIA T A 23 (30%) 31 (33%)
30-50 years old Person

30E505% A 40 (53%) 53 (56%)
Over 50 years old Person

5085 A A 13 (17%) 11 (12%)
By Employment Categories

R EER

Senior level Person

=R A - (-%) 4 (4%)
Middle level Person

R A 14 (18%) 16 (17%)
Entry level Person

AP A 62 (82%) 75 (79%)
By Geographical Region

R EEIHE S

Hong Kong Person

& A - (%) - (%)
China Person

G A 76 (100%) 95 (100%)

As at 31 December 2023, the Five Branches had 76 employees (2022:
95 employees), of whom 100% were full-time and 100% were in long-
term employees.

R-BE-_=F+=-A=+—0 " Ao /EH#HS
76H(ZE -4 9058 )EE - 100%H{E S
ABEBAEHES -
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This Year, the Five Branches’ annual employee turnover rate is as follows: RAREER - AESENFEERERA LR
T

Employee turnover rate 2023 2022

EERALLE —E-=4 —E-—F

By gender (Note 1)

®iE Bl &5 (FiEE1)

Male

Bk 161% 138%

Female

g 109% 63%

By age group (Note 1)

RFERAR B D (MH5E1)

Under 30 years old

305 AT 157% 155%

30 to 50 years old

30E505% 105% 64%

Over 50 years old

508 A 108% 18%

By geographical region (Note 1)

R B @I E 5 (MisE1)

Hong Kong

BE - -

China

ai 121% 88%

Note 1: The employee turnover rate is calculated based on the number of  Kff3F1 : BERAKLERTIRIERE AN THER

employees who left employment in specified category during the
reporting period divided by the total number of employees as at the
end of the financial year in specified category.
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The Group places emphasis on equal opportunities for all personnel in
respect of hiring, pay rates, training and development, promotion and
other terms of employment. The Group is committed to providing a
working environment which is free from any form of discrimination on the
basis of ethnicity, gender, religion, age, disability or sexual orientation.

The Group has a wide diversity of cultures including the employees
with different genders, ages, skills, educational backgrounds, industry
experiences and other qualifications in order to achieve the most suitable
composition and balance.

The Group has recently updated its employee handbook, effective
from November 2023, which applies to all employees across the Five
Branches. The revised employee handbook aligns with the Labour
Law of the PRC and has been provided to all employees upon their
commencement of employment with the Group.

The remuneration and position of the employees of the accommodation
operations will be adjusted based on the results of evaluation of individual
working performance and efficiency. Staff bonus is based on the
performance appraisal and operating results.

Treatment of employee’s misconduct must be fair and reasonable in all
of the circumstances. Misconduct may lead to a warning and even a
dismissal. Any acts of misconduct are to be reported to the human and
administration department. This Year, no incident of serious misconduct
was identified.

Employees’ wages, overtime payments and related benefits are made
not less than the local government’s minimum requirements. The normal
working hours for general employees are normally 8 hours a day and 40
hours a week. Integrated computation of working hours is implemented
with reference to the requirements of the Labour Law of the PRC.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with the Labour
Law of the PRC, Labour Contract Law of the PRC, Payment of Wages
Tentative Provisions and other applicable laws and regulations that has
a significant impact relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment
and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination and other benefits and welfare on the Group in the
Year.

No non-compliance with law that resulted in significant fines or sanctions
had been reported in the Year.

AEEIEERE  HFLE - HIIRER -
EAREMGRESBIARTERERHTE
#E - AEEBORH‘-ETFERR &
B RE FER - BRSO A EE AR A
TERRIR o

AEBERBZT  BETRMR - Fik
R -HEER TEERIEMEERNE
T IRULEBRER ZERMTE -

AEBSROEHTEEIFM  ZFME-F
“=Ft-ARER BRARAEEKLENT
BMOENERER - BRI RNETIFMEA
BEEE - WERSETABASERMER
Al

FEEEEREFMEARSREEA TIERR
KRR HEERETHE - BTIRATIERRK
RS RQERE -
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FREMBEHT  —KBR  BETES
HETARE - EAAETRE LBA D RIT
BERFY - NEE - W EERISHBEENTELT
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HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Group adopts non-discriminatory employment practices and
provides a healthy and safe workplace. All employees are strictly required
to follow the operating procedures, which include but not limited to (i)
pay attention to whether there is a dangerous work situation, if found,
they should immediately report to the supervisor; (i) use both hands to
handle the carts; (i) use a ladder or chair to take items from a height
or ask colleagues for help; (iv) wipe out the slippery or oily working
areas immediately in order to prevent slipping; (v) do not use damaged
machines or appliances to avoid accidents; (vi) maintain a variety of tools
and safety equipment; and (vii) strictly enforce the industry norms and
professional operation. Designated staff has been deployed to monitor
the implementation of those procedures.

Smoking is prohibited in all indoor areas of the Five Branches. First aid,
fire extinguishing, evacuation, leakage and escape exercises are regularly
performed. Two fire drills were conducted in the Year for the Baoan,
Nanshan and Huizhou Branch.

For electrical works, the Five Branches have employed or outsourced to
external electrical technicians who have valid licences granted by relevant

government officials.

The below table shows the work-related fatalities and recordable injury

RERZE

AEBERAFLRERERLIRHEBELZZ2H
TYEST - FRERBHABRBETRERRF
BREETRROBEEIEFEEFERRE
M R REFEANA EREFIRE
(NEFHE : (iMABEFHBFFRSREEID
ek RAEER ; (v)ENREREESORE T
fF[ZfX BILEIE R - (EELLE IR R NE

CEREREL  (VIEREETLAMRZER
ﬁ%? RWi)BASHITITR R B R ERERE - A&
B AEXSFEIEEZRETRE -

FRDEMAEERNRBIZITRE - EHLH=
BB BER R NRBEIRE - BRIE
FALLE BN IE R AN A TTMIOE I RAR -

BETIHE - BRHECEALI BN
BERMAR - HEORAMBTHIIRT B
AN o

@%:%:—E\:giiiﬁfjf F

for the three years ended 31 December 2021, 2022 and 2023. TZAZT—HIE=EAFE AIRT AR
Al TI51E R%W#Ti

Notification of accident 2023 2022 2021

BENEA —E-=F —EC-CF —E-—F

Number of work-related fatalities

TIRTAE = = =

Rate of work-related fatalities

AT R S = =

Lost days due to work injury

E TEmERHIRE - - -

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations BFHEBEEERER

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with the Law of
the PRC on Work Safety, Regulations on Work-Related Injury Insurance
of the PRC and other applicable laws and regulations that has a
significant impact on the Group relating to safe working environment and
protecting employees from occupational hazards in the Year.

No non-compliance with law that resulted in significant fines or sanctions
had been reported in the Year.
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DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group has been committed to providing on-the-job training of
its employees in order to enhance their knowledge and skills. All
employees are encouraged to enhance their skills and knowledge at
every opportunity in order to perform their current job more efficiently and
effectively and to be better prepared for career opportunities which may
arise. During the Year, quarterly training courses were provided to the
employees including but not limited to customer check-in and check-out
procedures, room services techniques, disinfection techniques for guest
rooms, fire safety, handling customers’ complaint, handling of items
left by customers and so on. The employees participated actively in the
training courses. For certain external training courses recommended by
the Group, part of the fees are borne by the Group in accordance with the
specific guidelines of reimbursement stated in the employee handbook.

During the Year, the employee training rate for Five Branches is as
follows:

R KB

AEEEELSEREBREMERE - URESK
FR MBI - AEEBAARENES
— ARSI REE R AE - AESBITE A
B TAE - R EFDEBERS - RAF
B AEERERERHEFERIRE £
BRETRREFPAETMEEREF - BERS
I3 EEEBRM - BhRE  BEFRHARE
1 FERERYMEES - EEEEHZ2EE
Ri2 - BRAKEEZNS TINEEIIRE
#0 B BAREREES T+ e A
BT SIHE -

RAFER - AFMDENEEXIILLEMT

Employee training rate 2023 2022

EBEZIIL=R —E-=F —EB-—F

Percentage of employees trained (Note 1)

ZMEEB DL (MFET) 100% 103%

Employee trained by gender (Note 2)

BB HNZIEE (FFF2)

Male

B 24% 35%

Female

gk 76% 65%

Employee trained by employment category (Note 2)

REBERZPHNZIEE (FI:F2)

Senior management

BREERE - 4%

Middle management

FREREE 18% 17%

General staff

—RET 82% 79%

Note 1: It is calculated by dividing the number of employees who took partin  FffFE1 : H IR 5E 8 ABRR AR B R R
training by number of employees as at the end of the financial year. B ASFIETE -

Note 2: It is calculated by dividing the number of employees trained in  FizE2 : EREEANNZIEER ABBRUZ
specified category by the total number of employees trained. IEBBAZGE -

Note 3: The figures are restated for consistent comparison purpose. BIFES - HUEE A —LEE -
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During the Year, the average training hours per employee for Five HAREER - AEDERNEAIEE FH5EHIH

Branches is as follows: g (I

2023 2022

—E-= —Eg-—

Total number of training hours
e l[REELES 228 647
Average training hours per employee (Note 1)
BEEFI9EIFE (M) 3.0 6.8
Average training hours per employee by gender (Note 2)
BRI B D MBI EE T IEIRE(HiT2)
Male
ESfks 3.2 8.0
Female
g 2.9 6.2
Average training hours per employee by employment category (Note 2)
REBERE D WESMES TR (FE2)
Senior management N/A
ERERE TEmA 1.8
Middle management
hRERE 3.1 2.6
General staff
—mETL 3.0 8.0
Note 1: It is calculated by dividing the total number of training hours by the — Fff&E1 -

total number of employees as at the end of the financial year.

Note 2: It is calculated by dividing the total number of training hours for — Fff7¥2 :

specified category by the number of employees as at the end of the
financial year in specified category.

imm ot

%5( At

R EAR D

LT5iRt JHEI’J%@ 5 B DA RA R 2 R [
pc|

El \ﬁ@ﬁ-rglﬁ-l%ﬁ?fﬂ(

HTy
FEREEAMNEE ARG

For recreational activities, the Group often organises a variety of IRZFFHE @ AEBELKEEGESES OEE

physical and mental health or sports activities, such as various sports  JEENKEFES - flnSiEES

competitions, outdoor picnic and employees’ birthday party. ENEBAEREE -
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LABOUR STANDARDS

The Group fully understands that the exploitation of child and forced
labour are universally condemned, and therefore take the responsibility
against child and forced labour very seriously. The Group complies with
all laws and regulations against child labour and forced labour strictly for
the Five Branches.

The Group conducts interviews with selected applicants for positions
of the Group to understand their backgrounds and motivations for
working for the Group. For registration as an employee, all employees
must present valid documents and copies to the Group as follows: (i)
identity card, academic proof such as diploma or degree certificate, title
certificate, vocational qualification certificate, English grade certificate; (i)
social security card; (i) medical or health certificate; (iv) recent photos;
and (v) other relevant information and documents required by the Group.
The above procedures can ensure no child labour or forced labour will be
employed in the accommodation operations.

All employees are entitled to have sick leave, injury leave and maternity
leave with medical proof in accordance with the Labour Law of the
PRC. In addition, all employees work normally 8 hours daily and are
not encouraged to work overtime. But if overtime work is required, the
relevant employees and supervisors will agree mutually in written form.
The compensation for overtime work is in accordance with the provisions
of Labour Law of the PRC.

The human resources function of the Group is responsible for reviewing
the measures to ensure they remain effective for avoiding child and
forced labour. When any child labour or forced labour is discovered,
the Group would terminate the employment relationship, report to the
relevant authorities and arrange to provide any necessary assistance to
the subject persons if required.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

The Group is not aware of any non-compliance with the Labour Law of
the PRC, Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labour, Protection
of Minors of the PRC and other applicable laws and regulations relating
to preventing child or forced labour on the Group in the Year.

No non-compliance with law that resulted in significant fines or sanctions
had been reported in the Year.

%I—I—/\IJ
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SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The Group has set up strict supply chain management system to ensure
high quality of service to customers. Specific attentions have been paid
to promote the health and safety consumables and services of the Five
Branches.

The Group adheres to the principle of transparency and implements the
values of honesty in order to minimise environmental and social risks
along the supply chain management. When selecting suppliers, in order
to minimise environmental and social risks along the supply chain, the
Group takes into account the factors such as quality of services and
products, past performance, reputation and the degree of environmental
and social responsibility of the suppliers. When dealing with suppliers of
goods and services, the approval procedures are in place to ensure that
all supplier engagements are monitored and approved by the appropriate
level of management. The Group expects major suppliers to observe the
same environmental, social, health and safety and governance policies in
their operating practices as those adopted by the Group.

The major suppliers for accommodation operations are suppliers of
bottles of water, washing of bed linings and pest control. For drinking
water provided to customers, the Group places orders to acquire bottles
of water from a well-known brand which has a series of green production
procedures. For washing of bed linings, the Group requires the supplier
to provide hygiene licence and environmental protection certificate prior
to placing any order. For pest control, the Group requires the supplier
to use pest control materials or consumables which fulfil the required
standards of local laws and regulations.

The Group regularly conducts random checks on the qualifications and
the products of the suppliers that have been engaged to ensure they
maintain the requisite standards.
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During the Year , the number of suppliers by geographical region for the
Five Branches is as follows:

RAFEER - AMDERBE RS D NHE
BB

Suppliers by geographical region 2023 2022
it EI 8 5 W ER —EB-=F —E-—F
Mainland China

HR B A 59 35

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

A high priority for the Group is to ensure customer satisfaction in terms of
products and services. Strenuous efforts are made to ensure compliance
with the laws and regulations relating to health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters of the jurisdictions in which the Group
operate. Employees are required to comply with applicable governmental
and regulatory laws, rules, codes and regulations.

As mentioned above, smoking is prohibited in all indoor areas of the Five
Branches. First aid, fire extinguishing, evacuation, leakage and escape
exercises are regularly performed. Daily guest room cleaning services
and regular hygiene inspection are maintained from time to time. If a
customer complains on his initially assigned guest room, the front line
staff will arrange another guest room until it is satisfied by the customer.
During the Year, no complaints was reported at the Five Branches.

Customer Feedback and Handling

The Group welcomes comments and suggestions from the customers.
The Group provides a variety of communication channels, for instance,
social media, membership channel, phone hotline, emails and websites.
Regular communication channels and feedback systems are in place to
gather information on satisfaction and suggestions for improvement from
the customers.

The Group consolidated and comprehensively analysed the customers’
feedback and monitored the level of customer satisfaction in its business.
Follow-up actions, including internal evaluation and modification of
training programmes for employees, formulation of improvement plan and
refining the existing management procedures will be taken to address the
identified issues. Feedback will be provided to the customers in a timely
manner.
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During the Year, there were no cases of complaints received against the
Group’s products and services due to health and safety issues.

The business nature of the Group does not involve the recall of products.
Data Privacy and Intellectual Property Rights Protection

The Group deals with lots of private and confidential information of
its customers. Hence, the Group has set up strict code of conduct
requirements for their employees. In addition, the employees are required
to maintain all reasonable methods to safeguard the information of the
Group and the customers as stated in employee handbook and working
practices.

The Group is committed to comply with relevant laws and regulations in
relation to intellectual property right (“IP rights”) by valuing and protecting
its intellectual properties through renewals of patent and trademark. In
order to ensure that the customer’s IP rights of products are properly
protected during the outsourcing processes to suppliers, a confidentiality
agreement regarding IP rights must be signed before engagement. The
Group enters standard employment contracts with its employees which
contain provisions on IP rights and confidentiality.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with the Patent
Law of the PRC and other applicable laws and regulations that has a
significant impact relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling,
privacy matters relating to products and services provided and methods
of redress on the Group in the Year.

No significant fines had been reported in the Year.
ANTI-CORRUPTION

Corruption, bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering in any form are
strictly prohibited. The Group’s anti-corruption policies set out standards
of conduct to which all employees are required to adhere in order to
promote the integrity environment in the workplace. Any employee is
prohibited from giving and accepting of advantages, by using the excuse
of work or the authority granted from the Group. The advantages include
but not limited to money, gifts, loans, rewards, contracts, services and
entertainment.
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All employees are required to strictly follow the guidelines stated in the
employee handbook, which includes but not limited to (i) protection of
customer information, business decision and private documents; (ii)
report and contribute to the Group for any gifts, commission, rebate
exceeding RMB100; (iii) prohibit to use the name or authority of the
Group for personal benefit; and (iv) prohibit to negotiate business
separately such as signing of contract, purchase of equipment or goods
without obtaining approval from relevant superiors. Certain guidelines
are repeatedly emphasized in anti-corruption training. During the Year,
the Group provides anti-corruption education and training (through
webcast and circulation of e-training materials) to its directors and staff
on a regular basis to raise their awareness towards ethical and corruption
issues.

The Group encourages the reporting of dishonest acts by the employees.
The human resources department may terminate the employment
contract with the employee because of dishonest acts as stated in the
employee handbook. The content of the complaint should be clear to
the fact and it is forbidden to fabricate the facts without any factual
basis or vent their anger. The criteria for a valid complaint includes (i) the
individual is unfairly treated in which the relevant supervisors handling
of the problem is not fair, abuse his power or combat retaliation; and (i)
the behaviour of individual causes damage to the interests of the Group.
All employees can raise their complaint by putting a written letter into a
complaint box located at the reception desk of each branch, by mail to
human resources department or even by verbal presentation.

The Group continuously monitors the implementation of the preventive
measures and whistle-blowing procedures.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with the Anti-
Unfair Competition Law of the PRC and other applicable laws and
regulations that has a significant impact on the issuer relating to bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering in the Year.

There was no legal case concerning corruption brought against the
Group or its employees in the Year.
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COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group is committed to creating sustainable prosperity that brings
long-term social and economic benefits for all stakeholders, particularly
to maintain the relationship with interest groups which are relevant to
business operation. This is realised by first meeting the needs of the
employees and then further extending the care and services to their
families and surrounding community.

Although the Group has not established and documented a specific
community policy, social care is deep-seated in the Group’s corporate
culture. Employees are encouraged to participate in various charitable
events and community service.

During the Dragon Boat Festival, the Huizhou Branch organised a rice
dumpling-making event. Employees were provided with materials and
tools to participate in the hands-on process of making rice dumplings. It
was a fun activity that allowed them to experience Chinese culture and
fostered interaction among them. Additionally, the Branch distributed
the finished rice dumplings to the nearby community, creating a shared
celebration of the traditional holiday and strengthening the relationship
between employees and the community.
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are pleased to submit
their report together with the audited consolidated financial statements of
the Company, and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2023.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Details of business review are set out in the “Chairman’s Statement” on
pages 5 to 6 and the section of “Management Discussion and Analysis”
on pages 7 to 18.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
Group is principally engaged in accommodation operations, provision
of accommodation consultations and property facilities management
services and other related business. The foregoing discussions form
parts on the business review as contained in this Report of the Directors.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the Year by operating
segments is set out in note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 are set
out in the consolidated financial statements on page 95 of this annual
report. The Directors do not recommend payment of any dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2023.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the Year are set out in note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PROPERTIES

The Group did not own any major property or property interests as at 31
December 2023.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital during the Year
are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2023, the Company had no reserve available for
distribution to shareholders including share premium account and
accumulated losses.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the Year are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
page 98 respectively.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to
the shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the
laws of Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The diversity and nature of the Group’s activities are such that the
percentage of sales attributable to the Group’s five largest customers
was approximately 13.9% (2022: 37.4%) of the total and the percentage
of sales attributable to the Group’s largest customer was approximately
13.9% (2022: 13.3%) and the Directors do not consider any one
customer to be influential to the Group.
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The main suppliers of the Group comprise suppliers of disposable
amenities, bed linings cleaning, laundry services, supply of bottles of
water and pest control. For the financial year ended 31 December
2023, the Group’s five largest suppliers in aggregate accounted
for approximately 67.9% (2022: 42.6%) of the total purchases and
purchases from the largest supplier accounted for approximately 17.4%
(2022: 21.3%) of total purchases.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholders of the
Company (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in the
Group’s five largest customers or five largest suppliers during the financial
year ended 31 December 2023.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had borrowings of principal
amount of HK$27,469,000 (2022: HK$27,469,000) from the Controlling
Shareholder. The borrowings are unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand. Save for the borrowings, the Group did not have any
outstanding bank borrowings for both years.

Moreover, on top of the above borrowings, the Controlling Shareholder
has also made available credit facilities of HK$200,000,000 and
HK$350,000,000 respectively, to the Company under substantially
the same terms with the Controlling Shareholder’s Borrowing under
which the Company may request for drawdown at any time prior on
or to 27 August 2025 and 7 August 2024 respectively. Any borrowing
made will be unsecured and interest-free. As at 31 December 2023,
credit facility of amount of HK$522,531,000 (2022: HK$527,233,000) is
available for use.

INTEREST CAPITALISATION

The Group had no capitalised interest during the year ended 31
December 2023 (2022: Nil).
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GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results of the Group for year ended 31 December 2023
is set out on page 196 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report were:
Executive Director

Mr. Chung Tin Yan (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yuan Fuer (Chairman)
Mr. Hu Xinglong

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wu Jilin
Mr. Du Hongwei
Mr. Lam Cheung Shing Richard

The terms of office of each Director are subject to retirement by rotation
in accordance with the Articles.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the
Group are set out from pages 19 to 22 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the 2023 AGM
has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable by
the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Every service agreement entered into by the Company with an executive
Director, which is currently in force and was in force during the year
ended 31 December 2023, contains indemnity provisions which are
permitted indemnity provisions under section 467 of the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) for the benefit of
the executive Directors. Pursuant to such provisions, the Company shall
indemnify any executive Director against any liability attaching to him in
connection with any legal proceedings in which he is involved by reason
of being a Director, and in which the judgment is given in his favour or in
which he is acquitted.

TERMS OF OFFICE FOR THE INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All the independent non-executive Directors were appointed for a specific
term of three years, but subject to the relevant provisions of the Articles
or any other applicable laws whereby the directors shall vacate or retire
from their office.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid
individuals of the Group are set out in note 10 to the consolidated
financial statements. Remuneration packages of the Directors are
recommended by the Remuneration Committee and approved by the
Board.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2023, so far as was known to the Directors, the
following Director had interest in the shares of the Company as notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code and
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 352 of the SFO:
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Approximately
percentage
of the issued

Capacity/ Number of share capital

Name of Director Nature of interest ordinary shares (Note 1)

HEBITRAE

BHAEI

EEnE B REmtE ZEREE (PFFEET)

Yuan Fuer (Note 2) Interest of a controlled 321,580,510 shares 71.72%
corporation

== 7 (EE2) REH AR 321,580,5100% 71.72%

Note 1: The approximate shareholding percentage is based on the number of — [fizF1 : IR EA DL IER ST -_=F+=A

shares in issue as at 31 December 2023 of 448,363,708.

Note 2: These 321,580,510 shares were registered in the name of Hehui

International Development Limited (“Hehui”). Mr. Yuan Fuer held the
entire issued share capital of Hehui and was deemed to be interested in
the 321,580,510 shares in which Hehui was interested pursuant to the
SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, so far as was
known to the Directors, none of the Directors and the chief executive
of the Company had any interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2023, so far as was known to the Directors, the
following substantial shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Company, not being Directors or the chief executive of the Company,
had interests in the shares as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under section 336 of the SFO:
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Aggregate
percentage of

Number of shareholding

Name Capacity ordinary shares (Note 1)

BREESLE

i 54 HBERHE (FMH5E1)

Hehui Beneficial owner 321,580,510 71.72%
BHEAA

Chen Hui (Note 2) Interest of a controlled corporation 35,740,071 7.97%

BRiE (FtEr2) R EDERE 2
Note 1:  The approximate shareholding percentages are based on the number of

shares in issue as at 31 December 2023 of 448,363,708.

Note 2:  As disclosed in “Form 1 — Individual Substantial Shareholder Notice” filed
by Mr. Chen Hui on 20 February 2018, Mr. Chen Hui controls 100% of
the shares in & & 7 £, which in turn controls 100% of the shares in
CHINA DRAGON ASIA CHAMPION FUND SERIES SPC, and BE#R S
and CHINA DRAGON ASIA CHAMPION FUND SERIES SPC each holds

interests in 35,740,071 shares of the Company directly.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, so far as was
known to the Directors, no other person (not being a Director or the chief
executive of the Company) had any interest or short position in the shares
or underlying shares as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under section 336 of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

Mr. Yuan Fuer, a non-executive Director of the Company, is the ultimate
beneficial controlling shareholder and chairman of each of Shenzhen
Hazens and Hazens. Shenzhen Hazens is principally engaged in
property development and property management services business
and holds interests in several hotels which are located in the United
States of America and managed by multinational hotel management
groups through its subsidiaries, and Hazens’ business scope includes
projects related to accommodation business. Given that the hotel
business of Shenzhen Hazens and its subsidiaries is not conducted in
the target markets of the Group or places where the Group has existing
and ongoing business operations, and that the Group has a right of
refusal under the relevant accommodation consultancy framework
agreement entered into with Hazens which grants the Group the priority
to obtain the accommodation business proposed to be conducted
by Hazens or its associate with independent third parties, and that
the majority of the members of the Board are independent and not
connected with the boards of Shenzhen Hazens and Hazens and their
respective subsidiaries, the Group is capable of and has been operating
independently of, and at arm’s length from the business of Shenzhen
Hazens and Hazens and their respective subsidiaries, no competition is
considered to exist during the Year.

Save as disclosed in the above and the sections headed “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” and “Continuing Connected
Transactions”, for the year ended 31 December 2023 and up to the date
of this report, the Directors are not aware of any business or interest of
the Directors, the management of the Company and their respective
associates (as defined under the Listing Rules) that compete or may
compete with the business of the Group and any other conflict of interest
which any such person has or may have with the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Connected Transactions”
and “Continuing Connected Transactions” below and in note 34 to the
financial statements and those exempted from the reporting, annual
review, announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under the Listing Rules, there was no

(1)  transaction, arrangement or contract of significance in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party in which any Director or any entity
connected with any Director is or was materially interested, either
directly or indirectly;

(2) contract of significance between the Company, or any of its
subsidiaries, and any of the Company’s controlling shareholders or
their subsidiaries; or

(8) contract of significance for the provision of services to the
Company, or any of its subsidiaries, by any of the Company’s
controlling shareholders or their subsidiaries

subsisting during or at the end of the financial year.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisitions of shares or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporates.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company which was not
contract of service with Directors or persons engaged in the full-time
employment of the Company was entered into or existed during the year
under review.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Save for the provision of accommodation consultations services from
related parties as disclosed in note 34(b) to the consolidated financial
statements (further details of which are set forth in the section headed
“Continuing Connected Transactions” in this Report of the Directors),
none of the related party transactions as disclosed in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements constituted a connected transaction
or a continuing connected transaction that was not fully exempt under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with all
applicable disclosure requirements in respect of those transactions that
were not fully exempt in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

On 16 November 2018 and 27 August 2021, Hehui International
Development Limited (“He Hui” or “Controlling Shareholder”), a controlling
shareholder of the Company which is wholly-owned by Mr. Yuen Fuer
has made available credit facilities up to amount of HK$350,000,000
and HK$200,000,000, respectively, to the Company (“Controlling
Shareholder’s Credit Facilities”) on normal commercial terms or better to
the Group. The borrowings drawn under the Controlling Shareholder’s
Credit Facilities shall be repayable on the date as set out in the individual
borrowing agreements and are interest-free and unsecured. The
Company may request for drawdown at any time prior on or to 27 August
2025 and 7 August 2024 respectively. Such financial assistance received
by the Group was fully exempt from the requirements under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group has borrowings of HK$27,469,000
(2022: HK$27,469,000) from the Controlling Shareholder. The borrowings
are repayable on demand, interest-free and unsecured.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year under review, the Group has conducted the following
continuing connected transactions which were required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 14A.71 of the Listing Rules.

On 24 February 20283, the Company and Hazens Holdings Group
(Shenzhen) Limited (“Hazens”), a company owned as to 99% by Mr.
Yuan Fuer (a non-executive Director and the chairman of the Board) and
1% by his brother and hence a connected person of the Company under
Rule 14A.07 of the Listing Rules, entered into a consultancy framework
agreement (“2023 Consultancy Framework Agreement”) pursuant to
which the Group will provide accommodation consultancy services to
Hazens and its subsidiaries in respect of feasibility of accommodation
business at the locations proposed by Hazens and the design of
accommodation places for a term commencing from 1 January 2023 to
31 December 2023 (both dates inclusive).

The principal terms of the 2023 Consultancy Framework Agreement are
set out below:

Date 24 February 2023 (after trading hours of the
Stock Exchange)

Parties o) The Company; and
(i)  Hazens

Term The term commences from 1 January 2023
and ends on 31 December 2023 (both days
inclusive)

Nature of Pursuant to the 2023 Consultancy Framework

transactions Agreement, the Group agreed to provide the
following accommodation consultancy services
to Hazens and its subsidiaries within the term

above.
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Pricing basis

The accommodation consultancy services will
include, but not limited to: (i) seeking suitable
location in relation to the accommodation
business; (i) performing market research of
the location of accommodation business
proposed by Hazens; (iii) providing advice
on certain interior and external design for the
accommodation business; (iv) advising on
estimated renovation cost and analysis on
the financial forecast of the accommodation
business; (v) preparing operation manual
and quality manuals with reference to 1ISO
standards; and (vi) assisting Hazens in seeking
construction contractor for the accommodation
business.

The parties will enter into individual agreement
for each transaction setting out specific terms
of the services including, among others, scope
of services, service fees, settlement method
and payment arrangement. Such terms will
be consistent with the terms of the 2023
Consultancy Framework Agreement.

The basis of service fee was arrived at after
arm’s length negotiations between the Group
and Hazens after taking into consideration of
the market conditions, the Group’s current
pricing policy of the services and on normal
commercial terms or on terms no less
favourable to the Group than those offered
to other customers of the Group who are
independent third parties for comparable
services.

If there is no relevant market price or
comparable services that the Group provide to
independent third parties, the service fees will
be determined by the relevant costs and past
performance of such consulting services of the
Group and take reference to the market price
of such comparable services.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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Payment terms

Right of first
refusal

Payment of service fees will be made according
to the payment terms of the individual
agreement for each transaction between the
parties, which will be determined by arm’s
length negotiations between the parties with
reference to, among others, the amount of
service fees payable.

Since Hazens is a company controlled by
Mr. Yuan Fuer, a connected person of the
Company, the accommodation business in
relation to the 2023 Consultancy Framework
Agreement, if conducted, might constitute
competing business. To avoid any potential
conflicts and unapproved competition
with the Group, Hazens agreed that if the
accommodation business in relation to the
2023 Consultancy Framework Agreement will
be conducted by Hazens or its associate (other
than the Company and its subsidiaries) with
other independent third parties, Hazens shall
notify the Group in written form.

The Group has the priority to obtain such
business opportunities regarding the
accommodation business and the Group must
inform Hazens whether the Group will exercise
the right of first refusal within 30 days after
receiving the written notice.

The Group can only exercise the right of first
refusal after obtaining all independent non-
executive directors approval. If there is a conflict
of interest or potential conflict of interest from
the directors of the Group, the directors with
conflicts of interest (if any) shall be excluded in
all board meetings and its voting right regarding
whether to exercise the right of first refusal.
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Annual Cap and Basis of Annual Cap

The Company estimates the annual cap of HK$9,970,000 for the financial
year ended 31 December 2023. The annual cap is calculated based on
the estimated demand of relevant services by Hazens under the 2023
Consultancy Framework Agreement and the prevailing price of similar
services provided by the Group to its independent third party customers.

In order to determine the service fees for each transaction and to ensure
that the service fees charged by the Group would not be less favourable
than the service fees charged by the independent third party in the
market for similar services, the Group will (i) make reference to the pricing
of similar services with independent third party customers; (i) review
historical transactions between Hazens and its independent third party
suppliers for similar services (if the Group could not obtain information in
(iy for comparison); and (jii) obtain price quotations from its independent
third party suppliers and mark up with a reasonable profit margin. In order
to ensure the pricing basis of connected transactions will be complied
with, the Group will make reference to the pricing in all similar services
in the past 12 months prior to the proposed connected transactions
(the “Review Period”). If the Group has not provided any similar services
in the Review Period, the Group will request its connected persons,
e.9. Hazens, to provide details on at least two historical transactions in
the Review Period with and/or quotations of its independent third party
suppliers to assess the market price and assess the profitability after
taking into account its relevant costs, such as price quotations from
its independent third party suppliers and own administrative costs. In
rare cases both the Group and its connected persons have not been
involved in similar services in the Review Period, the Group will determine
the pricing based on price quotations from its independent third party
suppliers and own administrative costs and mark up with a reasonable
profit margin with reference to similar services in the market.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited (“HLB”), the Company’s auditors,
were engaged to report on the Group’s continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. HLB has issued their
unqualified letter to the Board containing their findings and conclusions in
respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed above by the
Group in accordance with the Listing Rules and confirming the matters as
stated in Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive Directors have, for the purpose of
Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, reviewed and confirmed that the above
continuing connected transactions undertaken by the Group were
entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) either on normal commercial terms or better; and (i) in accordance
with the relevant agreements governing the transactions on terms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

PENSION SCHEMES

The Group participates in a defined contribution retirement scheme
organised by the government in the PRC and the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme under which certain percentage of the salaries of the
employees are contributed to the pension schemes. Particulars of
these schemes are set out under “Employee benefits” in note 4 of
the consolidated financial statements. There is no provision under the
pension schemes which provides for forfeiture of contributions which may
be used by the Group to reduce the existing level of contributions.
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AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023 have
been audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited and a resolution for
the reappointment as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
has been the auditor of the Company since 29 June 2020.

PUBLICATION OF INFORMATION ON WEBSITES

This annual report is available for viewing on the website of Stock
Exchange at www.hkex.com.hk and on the website of the Company at
www.legend-strategy.com.

By Order of the Board

Yuan Fuer
Chairman

25 March 2024

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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Independent Auditors’ Report
BY AT ®RE

B &t EH A R E
HODGSON IMPEY CHENG LIMITED

HLB

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

LEGEND STRATEGY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP
COMPANY LIMITED

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Legend
Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 95 to 195, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2023, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of material accounting policy information and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA'’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to note 2 to the consolidated financial statements
which indicates that the Group incurred a net loss of HK$61,768,000
for the year ended 31 December 2023 and, as of that date, the Group
had net current liabilities and net liabilities of HK$72,189,000 and
HK$82,741,000 respectively. As stated in note 2 to the consolidated
financial statements, these events or conditions, along with other matters
as set in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, indicate that a
material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in
respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significant in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter described in
Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern section above, we have
determined the matters described below to be key audit matters to be
communicated in our report.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
& BB & EZERE R QR

RRE®

B REEBEAMASRMONETERECE
([ FEZRBER ) EITERK - FEELER
T BANEESERMREPEHMAFE
HENBHABAFRENRE—HPE—FE
it RBEFLSFMAG ZBESHABIET
AI(TsFRI]) - ZRMBLRY EKE - WE BB
STRAIBTTEMBRET - BFIMEE - BFIFAE
SHEZERAZRMEE M ARFNE RLE
HER

AR EHENERTHBRE

BRFITBEIGKATBHRERM T2 B K
N BEERREE_E_=Ft+_-_A=+—
B I E %15 % E51861,768,0008 7T R & &=
ZH BEEMNFRDABERFAGESAA
72,189,000/ 7T 282,741,000/ T ° 4R E
B S sR R M sk 2FT il » sZ E B ek L iE R AR
G B MR 2SN E M E IR RFER
e BEEEETHESERERRZEAT
AR - BBt S ERREREBESR -

BRARFZEE

REXMANEZHE - BREZSASLMF
BAHESEAMBHRRTREENSFEH - &I
EEZEREAMBERERMULEAE R R
BHEFEH MIAERULEFTHEFERE
R B EX/BfFEEEF B EXTHEEA
F/-HMANEESN  RAEEETEEE
RERBEMNHRENEE 2 FRESZSEA -



Independent Auditors’ Report
B R &

Key audit matters
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RANFSTNNEEFARERER

Impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment (“PPE”), goodwill and right-of-use assets
(“ROU assets”)

Refer to notes 18, 20 and 21 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

The Group had interests in various branches of hotel in the
People Republic of China (the “PRC”). The carrying values of
hotels were included in the PPE, goodwill and ROU assets
with carrying amounts (net of impairment) of HK$19,927,000,
HK$nil and HK$92,039,000 respectively as at 31 December
2023.

Management considers each branch to be a separate
cash-generating unit (“CGU”) and performs impairment
assessments, where impairment indicators exist, to
determine the recoverable amount of the branches’ PPE,
goodwill and ROU assets. The recoverable amount is
determined as the CGU’s value-in-use, which involves
estimation of future business performance and key
assumptions including discount rates, occupancy rates,
average room rates, etc.. Based on the impairment
assessments carried out by management, impairment loss
of HK$6,796,000, HK$1,858,000 and HK$33,106,000
respectively were recognised in respect of PPE, goodwill and
ROU assets during the year ended 31 December 2023.

We focused on this area as the impairment assessments
and determination of recoverable amounts involve significant
management’s judgments and estimations.
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Key audit matters

BREZER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RANFSTNNEEFARERER

QOur audit procedures in relation to management’s
impairment assessments including, but not limited to the
followings:

o Evaluating management’s future cash flow forecasts
and the process by which they were prepared for each
CGU, including testing the mathematical accuracy of
the underlying calculations and compared the future
cash flow forecasts to the latest approved budgets
and actual results of the prior period;

° Assessing the appropriateness of methodologies used
by management with the support of the auditors’
experts;

° Assessing the key assumptions including occupancy
rates and average room rates applied in the forecasts
by comparing them to historical results, economic and
industry forecasts;

° Assessing external professional valuers’ competence,
capabilities and objectivity, and reading the valuation
reports prepared by the external valuers; and

° Checking, on a sample basis, the accuracy and
relevance of the input data used by the auditors’
experts.

Based on our audit procedures performed, we found the
assessments of the recoverability of the carrying amounts
of PPE, goodwill and ROU assets were supported by the
evidence we obtained.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and
our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditors’ report is Yu Chi Fat.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Yu Chi Fat
Practising Certificate Number: P05467

Hong Kong, 25 March 2024
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEZHEBAR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE-_T_-_=F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2023 2022
—E-=F =g = =
Notes HK$’000 HK$jOOO
Bt FET FHIT
Revenue I = 8 67,661 63,002
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREESENE . (20,316) (21,287)
Depreciation of property, plant and Y~ R REETE
equipment B (8,847) (9,362)
Employee benefit expenses EEEHIFX (17,722) (21,585)
Utilities N3 (3,649) (3,867)
Other operating expenses Hith 2B 11 (12,891) (19,692)
Fair value (loss)/gain on financial asset at mAFET ARR((RATE
fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) AR ZEREE
ZAHE(ER) Mas (1,864) 1,422
Allowance for expected credit loss model ~ FREREEESIBMRUIE MRE K
on financial assets at amortised cost REHEN SR EERRERER (14,573) (208)
Impairment on non-financial assets S REERE (41,760) =
Other income H A 12 1,079 2,861
Operating loss BEFE (52,882) (8,716)
Finance costs BB R AR 13 (5,791) (7,387)
Loss before tax RREL AT 1R (58,673) (16,103)
Income tax expense FriSfif 14 (3,095) (1,544)
Loss for the year FREE 15 (61,768) (17,647)
Other comprehensive loss: Htt2EEE :
ltem that may be subsequently reclassified B Al EZ H I8 18252 18
to profit or loss: g
Exchange differences on translating foreign & /EHNEFRGE A 2 FE =58
operations (99) (1,255)
Total comprehensive loss for the year S£R2EEEETE (61,867) (18,902)
Loss for the year attributable to: BUF AL BIEFAEE :
Owners of the Company ZiN/NEIE ZEWN (38,178) (7,794)
Non-controlling interests FEIE R A (23,590) (9,853)
(61,768) (17,647)
Total comprehensive loss for the year T A TEEERZEEE
attributable to: MEE
Owners of the Company AKARER A (38,526) (10,145)
Non-controlling interests ESUY T T (23,341) (8,757)
(61,867) (18,902)
Loss per share BEREE 17
— Basic (Hong Kong cents) —ZARB) (8.51) (1.74)
— Diluted (Hong Kong cents) —#5E (B(L) (8.51) (1.74)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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= m B Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

A B AR &R

As at 31 December 2028 R-ZF-_=F+_-_A=+—H

2023 2022
—E_=F —E-—F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
MosE F&T T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - B KA 18 19,927 35,597
Rental deposits HEZe 19 3,226 2,146
Goodwill (EES 20 - 1,962
Prepayments SEUNEAE - 22
Right-of-use assets EREERE 21 92,039 123,618
Deferred tax assets RETRIRE = 22 2,909 3,398
118,101 166,743
Current assets REBEE
Rental deposits MEES 19 1,197 2,644
Prepayments, deposits and other TERFIR © e REAEWKEIE
receivables 19 2,303 4,128
Financial asset at FVTPL BATEGFABR SRIEE 23 2,049 3,913
Trade receivables FEURER SR 24 1,071 15,962
Inventories IESy 25 384 344
Bank and cash balances RIT MR AER 2,214 2,434
9,218 29,425
Total assets HMEE 127,319 196,168
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables FEATBR SR R B A FE A 5RIE 26 25,778 38,052
Tax payable FERTIE 2,207 2,671
Lease liabilities HEAE 28 25,953 22,572
Borrowings EE 29 27,469 27,469
81,407 90,764
Net current liabilities BERBAE (72,189) (61,339)
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERREAERE 45,912 105,404

- 96 Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

meEMBRRE

As at 31 December 2023

RZE—_=t+F+=-_A=+—8H

2023 2022
—EC=HE B4
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
MosE FET T
Non-current liabilities FRBEME
Provision for asset retirement IREEEEEIR B 27 477 463
Lease liabilities HEAE 28 128,176 125,815
128,653 126,278
Net liabilities FEE (82,741) (20,874)
EQUITY =
Capital and reserves ERRfEE
Share capital f& s 30 4,484 4,484
Reserves {15 (40,832) (2,3006)
Equity attributable to owners of AT AE LR
the Company (36,348) 2,178
Non-controlling interests I i s (46,393) (23,052)
Capital deficiency B A (82,741) (20,874)

The consolidated financial statements on pages 95 to 195 were approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 25 March 2024 and
are signed on its behalf by:

Yuan Fuer
RER
Director

EZE

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.

REBEEFIVENGAEVERRER
—EoME=A - thHEESES A LR
T RIA FATRERESE -
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Chung Tin Yan
$ERAT
Director

EZE
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s m 8 Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

REERBHR

For th

e year ended 31 December 2023 #HE—_T_=F+_A=+—HIEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ﬂi’ﬁlﬁﬁ)\ﬁﬁi Non-
Share Share Exchange Statutory  Shareholders'  Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve reserve  contributions losses Sub-total interests Total
s Rt EXRE EERE E¥: b5y | gt FRMER &3t
Note () Note (i) Note (il Note (iv)
(| ] B G
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThT T Thr Thr ThTL FhT T T Thr
At31 December 2021 R=Z=-%
andatiJanuay2022 +=A=1-H
RR=%-z%
-A-H 4,484 261,578 1,474 3513 9,112 (267,838 12,328 (14,29) (1972)
Loss for the year ERER - - - - - (7,794 (7,794) 9,859 (17,647)
Other comprehensive 22E(ER)
(loss) income WA = - 2,351) - - - 2,351) 1,09 (1,255)
At31December2022  W=E==%
andatiJanuay2028 +=A=1-H
RR=%-Z%
-A-H 4,484 261,578 877) 3513 9,112 (275,632) 2,178 (23,052) (20,874)
Loss for the year EMER = - - - - (38,178) (38,178) (23,590) (61,768)
Other comprehensive Hh2E(EE)
(loss) income WA - - (348) - - - (348) 249 (99)
At31December2023  W-E==f
tZA=1-A 4,484 261,578 (1,225) 3513 9,112 (313,810) (36,348) (46,393) (82,741)
Notes: BiE
0] Share premium (i) A&t (B

(i)

(i)

Under the Companies Act of the Cayman Islands, the funds in the share
premium account of the Company are distributable to the shareholders of
the Company provided that immediately following the date on which the
dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a position to
pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising
from the translation of the financial statements of foreign operations. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies set out in
note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

Statutory reserve

The statutory reserve, which is non-distributable, is appropriated from the
profit after taxation of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries under the applicable
laws and regulations in the PRC.

Shareholders’ contributions

The shareholders’ contribution represent waiver of interest expenses on
borrowings from shareholders.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mEBRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE-_T_-_=F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2023 2022
—E-=F —E-4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHIT
Cash flows from operating activities KETHELENRERE
Loss before tax Brif ARSI (58,673) (16,103)
Adjustments for: TR
Bank interest income HRITAL WA 4) (10)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE 20,316 21,287
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M - BELRRETE 8,847 9,362
Fair value loss/(gain) on financial asset at FVTPL AP EFABH S RIEE 2
NFEEE (W) 1,864 (1,422)
Allowance for expected credit loss model on TEEEEEEENTE TR HEK
financial assets at amortised cost REHEM 2R E ERRERTE 14,573 208
Impairment of non-financial assets FERBEERE 41,760 =
Finance cost on provision for asset retirement HEAEERBERNRERR 21 22
Interest on lease liabilities HEEEFE 5,770 7,365
Gain on lease modification HE BRI - (574)
Operating profit before working capital changes LiEESEB R E BT 34,474 20,135
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables &4k BR 5k Kz £t FE U 7108
B, (35 hn) 2,615 (12,228)
Decrease/(increase) in rental deposits AERemD (35 n) 768 (439)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEGEM),w (40) 5
Increase in trade and other payables P 1T BR 35K % L Ath AT SR IE 3 426 4,380
Cash generated from operations KEMmER® 38,243 11,853
Income tax paid B PTSE (3,083) (2,505)
Net cash generated from operating activities KRBTSR & F 35,160 9,348
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 EHE—ZT-_=F+_A=+—HIFE

2023 2022
—EBE-=F =
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FABT
Cash flows from investing activities RETHEENRERE
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEME - BB K& (648) (2,938)
Interest received BFE 4 10
Net cash used in investing activities BE RSN E S (644) (2,928)
Cash flows from financing activities REETHEENESRE
Proceeds from borrowings B RFT1S5RIE = 4,702
Repayment to non-controlling interests BB IR A A X (12,680) (328)
Repayment of lease liabilities EEEEaE (22,264) (23,383)
Net cash used in financing activities BB EBIFTRMIR 255 (34,944) (19,009)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents RERBSEEWRDFE (428) (12,589
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning FYIRHe MRS EEY
of the year 2,434 14,296
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes HNETE R EF ) 2 208 727
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year F£ANBELRBELSZEY 2,214 2,434

- 100 Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited
liability. The address of its registered office is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands. The address of its principal place of business is
Suite 1702, 17/F., World-Wide House, No. 19 Des Voeux Road
Central, Central, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”).

Its parent is Hehui International Development Limited (the
“Controlling Shareholder”), a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands, and is beneficially owned as to 100% by Mr. Yuan
Fuer (“Mr. Yuan”), who is also a non-executive director of the
Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) are
principally engaged in the accommodation operations, provision
of consultations and property facilities management services and
other related businesses in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”) which is same as the functional currency of the
Company. The consolidated financial statements are presented in
the nearest thousand (HK$’000) unless otherwise stated.

GOING CONCERN

The Group incurred a net loss of HK$61,768,000 for the year ended
31 December 2023 and, as of that date, the Group had net current
liabilities and net liabilities of HK$72,189,000 and HK$82,741,000
re